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Consignia Holdings pie and the Consignia Group 
The Consignia Group (the Group) comprises Consignia 
Holdings pic (the Company) -which is wholly-owned by HM 
Government - and Consignia pie, which itself has a number 
of subsidiary undertakings and associates. Both Consignia 
pie and Consignia Holdings plc are incorporated under the 
Companies Act and as a result, the accounts are no longer 
produced in accordance with a direction from the Secretary 
of State. The man implications of this change are -hat the 
prior year comparatives are those of The Post Office Group 
and the accounting policy for fixed assets has changed from 
modified historic cost accounting to historic cost accounting 
the almost universal choice of pies. This has resulted in an 
upward restatement of last year's profit by £32m and a net 
reduction to tangible fixed assets of £521m. 

The accounts are drawn up for the 53 week period ended 
31 March 2002 (2001 52 weeks). 

Going concern 
There is significant uncertainty concerning the outcome of the 
funding discussions with Government and therefore as to 
whether or not he Group can be considered lobe a gong 
concern. A Key issue is the viability and affordability of the 
network of Post OYlces. Our plans require total funding of 
some £2.4bn over the next three years and the Company 
is in active discussions with Government about how these 
future cash requirements are to be furcted. Government 
approval to fund the renewal plan aid especially a decision 
on the funding of the social Post Office network is critical 
to our continuing operations. The D rectors be ieve that the 
outcome of funding discusslorm with Government will be 
favourable. On this basis, after considexatkin of the cash tow 
projections, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to 
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

Group results 
Consignia made a full yea loss from its operations of E318m 
(2001 £206m) before exceptional Items - equivalent to £1.2m 
every trading day. The loss analysed by business segment 
was Mails and parcels £138m (2001 £150m). Counter 
services £164m (2001 £57m) and Other £15m (2001 profit 
£1m). This loss was before taking into account a net Lim loss 
on associates and a £250m pensions benefit (2001 £228m) 
derived in accordance with SSAP 24, which resulted in a net 
operating loss of £68m (2001 profit of £22m). 

The loss before taxation was £1,124m (2001 profit £81 m). 
Tns loss reflects net interest receivable of £56m (2001 
E 10dm) and exceptional items of E1.112m (2001 E47m). 
The loss for the year after a net fax credit of 0179m (2001 
charge £34m) and equity minority interest fitter (2001 £2m) 
was £940m (2001 profit £49m). 

External turnover grew by £269rn (3.6%) to £8.408m, mainly 
reflecting growth in UK mails and parcels of £214m and 
overseas activities of 083n 

Whilst we sold current asset Investments of £363m 
to generate cash, mainly to fund the Post Office network, 
our net cash inflow was only £172m. This principally 
represents ncreased cash in the network to cover benefit 
payments. All core trading businesses suffered net cash 
outfows totalling some 2191 m. The Group's cash position 
was helped by the pension holiday windfall of E135m (2001 
£f 36m). The windfall relates lathe surplus ho It up in the 
pension scheme over the past 20 years because of the high 
equity bias of the turd during a sustained period of bull 
market returns that exceeded actuarial forecasting 
assumptions 

The segmental analysis in note 1 to the Group accounts 
analyses the operating loss in accordance with SSAP 25-
Segmental reporting. We have set out below an alternative 
analys s that recognises the pensions benefit does not arise 
from current trading and the substantial amount of trading 
bciwocn operational and support units, inducing the impact 
or r tc,nal interest charged to businesses for centrally 
managed funding resources. Cash tows reflect both 
movements in physical cash and working capital movements 
funded through .ntercompany balances. 

Malls and parcels 
Mails and parcels consist of our traditional businesses of UK 
and international mails, UK parcels, and Logistics Solutions, 
together with some more recently acquired international 
businesses, our European parcels bus nesses-General 
Logistics Systems (GLS) and our overseas mails businesses. 
Together, these businesses reported total revenue of 
£7,367m, an increase of £279m (3.8%) over 2001, and losses 
from operations of £241 m (2001 £407m). 

UK mails revenue increased by £157m to £5,317m-
a grown rate of 1 1% alto- adjusting for the 53rd week 
A 1% growth in pi bar box and co', ',ecllon postings and a 3.2% 
growth in commercial and bulk-costed letters were achieved. 
substantially below planned levels. These disappointing 
growths reflect a slow-down in the national economy and the 
impact of electronic substitution. Specifically, September 11 
and anthrax scares impacted commercial and bulk-posted 
letters frt the Autumn and W alter periods by an estimated 
E50m. The slow-down has rolled over into 2002-03. 

Total costs grew by £82rn to £5,391 m, representing no growth 
after adjusting for the 53rd week. 

Overall, the losses from operations for the mails business, 
before exceptional items, were reduced by £75m to £74m 
This result includes urolils Irwin our Stamps and Collectibles 
operations of E47m (2001 £53m). Losses after exceptional 
items but before tax were £148m and the cash outflow 
was £31m. 

International mails total income increased by £8m Io 0746n1 
(no growth after adjusting for the extra week). Total Costs 
at E764m reduced by £36m - a 6% saving over the prior year 
canparable period. Those savings were 'argety due to lower 
handling costs both In the UK and overseas, and gave rise 
to a reduction in fosses of £44m to £18m bates exceptional 
items and tax, and a loss of 02Cm after exceptional items but 
before tax. The cash outflow from the international mails 
operations was £82m. 

Inferna'iona' mail's will benefit from the cross-border business 
mail venture between Consignia (245%), TNT Post Group 
(51%) and Singapore Post (24.5%), which was allowed by the 
European Commission on 15 June 2001. The new company, 
branded as `Spdrg', began tracing in July 2001 and will 
deliver benefits to mailers worldwide, by combining the global 
reach, networks, systems, p,oducts and expertise of the three 
parent organisations. The Group contributed £38M in the form 
of the assets and hosin,mnss of its European branches, one of 
its USA subediary undertakings and the purchase cf sh.ares 
for £21m in the new venture. 

UK parcels total income grow by £37m to £719m, of which 
£474m was external income and E245m for internal services. 
External income increased by £18m, representing 2% 
adjusted growth Operating costs increased by £38m to 
E813m (3% adjusting tot tic 53rd week). The losses from 
operations remained brandy flat at E94m even after taking 
into account the E9m benef,cwal impact on depreciation 
arising from impa rmen.t at the half year. The business cash 
outflow was £l15m. 

Our UK parcels business nay lost money for more than 
a decade. Clearly, mounting losses of this magnitude and the 
drain on the Group's financial reserves are unsustainable, 
and in March 2002, the Board announced the downsizing 
of its UK parcels operations, exiting from loss-making product 
areas narrlely, non'time-guaranteed', non 'next day' or 'trvo 
day express deliveries. This gave rise to exceptional charges 
of £397m (€138m impairment of assets, £222m redundancy 
costs and £37m restructuring and closure costs), such that 
the losses from operations after exceptional items but before 
tax were £491m. 

The Parcelforce hub with its associated computerised 
track-and-trace system became fully operational early in the 
financial year, provid'mg a key stepping stone in our capability 
to compete in the express market. 
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Logistics Solutions income at £601 m, of which £228m 
is external revenues, grew by £45m mainly in response 
to additional internal activity to support UK parcel operations 
Costs at £616m were broadly in line with previous years. 
The net impact is a fait in the overall loss before exceptional 
costs by £51m to £15m. Exceptional costs were £127m 
bringing total losses before tax to £142m. Cash outflow for 
the business was £25m,. 

General Logistics Systems, our European parcels operation, 
grew its income by £65m to £600m during the year, of which 
£61m was attributable to the full-year impact of acquisitions 
and the remaining £4m from underlying growth. Losses 
before tax were £40rn. 

Consignia has Increased its shareholding In the General 
Parcel network through the strategic acquisition of some 
small additional European operations principally in Italy 
and Denmark, amounting to a total investment of £9m. 

Counter services 
On I October Post Office Limited assumed the functions 
of Post Office Counters Ltd, which brought together the 
Network Banking, Post Office Network and Cash Handling 
and Distribution business units. 

Counter services increased its total income by £93m (5.7% 
allowing for the additional week) to £1,289m. Overall, costs 
Increased by £195m to £1,452m (13% after adjusting for the 
53rd week). The annual costs of running Horizon - the front 
office computer terminal system- amounted to £f05m, 
an increase of £31m following the system's full national 
deployment. Other key movements In costs were £25rn 
higher payments to some 14,900 agents/subpostmasters, 
inflation impact of £7m and IT developments principally on 
the banking engine totalling £23m. The business also 
received contributions from Government for the investment in 
universal banking technology of £20m and' four Guide' pilot 
of e21)m. the latter being an initiative to explore the feasibility 
of prow ding elactron'c access to Government ;ntormation 
in the network branches. 

Losses from operations before exceptional items amounted 
to £163m (£102m worse than last year) and £241m after 
exceptional items. The cash outflow for the year was £412m 
excluding the increase in network cash of £l57m to support 
Benefits Agency payments to customers over the Easter 
Bank Holiday period. This weekend was also the accounting 
year end. 

Responsibility for the liabilities of the HOrizoMUL Pathway 
project was transferred from Government to The Post Office 
in 1999. This resulted in a one-off payment by the Group for 
costs incurred by iCLof £550m, a write-off of £571m in the 
1999-2000 accounts and the incurrence of substantial on-
going maintenance costs. By the time the contract terminates 
in April 2005, aggregate contract costs are expected to 
amount to some £1 ion. 

The incremental costs of running the Horizon System have 
turned counter services into a fundamentally unprofitable 
operation - a position that will be exacerbated by the move 
of Benefits Agency Transactions away from the counters 
network from April 2003. This will reduce total revenue by 
some £400m (30%). In addition, the absence of advance 
Benefits Agency funding will have a substantial adverse 
impact on the working capital of the business. 

The d;tticult tnancist position is being addressed 'vr two ways 
Firstly, rationalisation of the Pest Office network. Secondly 
we are conducting a fundamental strategic review, which 
is examining the economic viability, social obligations and 
the commercial opportunities of the network. This entails 
discussions with Government on the funding of the social 
element and the deployment of universal banking. 

We are committed to submitting a revised strategic plan 
to Government early this September. Foltowtng on from this, 
we expect the source and extent of funding for the network 
to be determined and agreed by Government. 

Universal banking services - comprising introductory 
accounts offered by the banks and toe card account - are 
being developed to meet the complex challenges of the 
stakeholders, which include Government, major high street 
banks, our customers and Ccxisignia. "total irrvestrnent to date 
on these new banking services has been around £62m, of 
which £49m was expended this year The Government has 
contributed £20m towards these costs. The new service is 
expected to come on-stream from Spring of 2003. Universal 
banking services will allow people receiving benefits - 
currently some t 5m people- who do not have access to 
a bank account to make cash withdrawals at Post Offices, 

Cater Group activftles 
Other Group aclivilies comprise the Group Centre and 
support services to the main trading businesses. Profit from 
operations to, the year, prior to the pensions benefit was 
£86m, £1 76m lower than fast year. The profit mainly consists 
of internal interest charges made to operating and supporting 
units of £214m, offset by net tosses on support services 
activities of £128m, 

sxceptlooat Items 
The Group results include net exceptional costs of £1,1 12m 
(2001 £47m). of which 53% related to the costs associated 
with the restructuring of our UK parcels business and UK 
transportation systems. Both of these changes were 
announced on 25 March of this year and represent the first 
phase of a three-year programme to remove £1.4hn from 
our gross cost base. 

Impairments totalled £45310 of which £398m related to our 
UK and European mails and parcels operations, £48m was 
for Post Office network and £7m for goodwill in associates. 
We have written dawn the value of GLS in our balance sheet 
to reflect our view of the value of the business under current 
market Bond lone. The impairment of the Post Office network 
was made after consideration of the expected future cash 
flows of Post Office Limited bringing the cumulative total 
impairment of assets in this business to 2619m. 

Provisions for restructuring the UK parcels service amounted 
to £298m made up of £222m in redundancy and £76m for 
outer restructuring costs. 

Restructuring the mails and parcels pipeline required 
provisions amounting to £156m of which £62m was 
redundancy and £94m restructuring charges. 

Redundancy prov siors amounting to £228m relating to 
a number of mind' LEI{ ma's projects totalling £60m, the 
review of the Post Office Limited structure of £28m arid 
£140m for staff working in support services. in addition, 
£lOm was raised for vacant leasehold properties. 

The principal exceptional item in the previous year was 067w 
as a consequence of the BBC's decision to terminate the 
television licence administration and enforcement contract 
with Envision Licensing Limited. A subsequent recovery 
from another party has been included as an exceptional 
profit this year. 

The accounts also include net profits on disposal of fixed 
assets of £14m (20(11 restated £20m) in accordance with 
accounting standard FRS 3. 

Taxation 
The Group has adopted the new accounting standard 
FRS 19- Deferred tax, and the accounts reflect deferred 
tax on a full provisioning basis. The accounts Include a E3m 
current tax charge and a deferred tax credit of £182m for 
the year. 

The tax credit for 2002 represents an effective tax rate of 16% 
on a loss before tax, compared to a restated tax charge of 
42% for 2001. The credo mainly arises from relief for 
restructuring costs, which gives rise to losses that have 
been offset against deferred tax liabilities, and fired asset 
write-downs, which have also reduced deferred tax liabilities. 
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Treasury 
The Group operates a cent-al treasury function that manages 
some £1.8bn of investments, in accordance with investment 
restrictions set by Government, and actS aS internal barker 
for the Group. Group operations are primarily trarced 
through retained protirs and borrowings. 

The Government has indicated that T would expect the 
investments represented by cash surpluses arising from 
previous years trading to be ring-fenced for specific 
purposes: to act as security for borrowing from the National 
Loans Fund to finance the mails business, and to support 
expenditure by Post Office Limited (POL) where such 
expenditure has the approval of the Secretary of State and 
theTreasury. 

Group-treasury derives its authority from the Consignia 
Board. The Treasury function only has the authority to 
undertake financial transactions relating to the mar,_atjer-iant 
of underlying business risks, A": siralegies are risk averse, 
Regular upward reporting is to the Consignia Executive 
Board. 

The Group's main financial risks are interest rate risk and 
foreign currency risk, 

The Group mitigates interest rate risk through a portfolio 
approach to investment. Short-term portfolios are driven 
by liquidity requirements whilst medium-term portfolios are 
driven by investment decisions. The duration of medium-term 
Investments is set at between 240 and 450 days. 

The Group has both fixed and occasional floating rate 
borrowings. 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency translation risk on 
the net assets of all overseas subsidiaries with the exception 
of the German Parcel subsidiary, where a floating rate euro 
loan provides a partial hedge. 

Foreign currency balances, held to operate the Bureau de 
Change service are hedged using a combination of Icrward 
and spot deals. Where possible, the internal netting of 
exposures takes place. 

The Group is exposed to transaction risk from its obligations 
to pay overseas postal administrations for the delivery of 
UK-originating mail. A maximum of 80% of this exposure 
is hedged in an initial 12-month programme, which is 
subsequently reviewed on a monthly basis. This programme 
utilises forward foreign currency contracts, options, and 
foreign currency deposits. 

All other significant liabilities are hedged when they 
become contractual. 

The Group's fuel risk management strategy ems to reduce 
uncertainty created by movements in the oil market. The 
strategy operates within the parameters set by the Board. 
Over-the-counter financial derivative products are used 
to manage dots the commodity and foreign exchange 
eiemenls of the exposure. 

Treasury operates a rolling 18-month programme, which 
is subsequently reviewed on a quarterly basis. 

Counterparty risk is managed by limiting aggregate exposure 
to an individual counterparty, taking account of its 
debt-to-income ratio and the counterparty size. These 
exposures are reviewed regularly and adjusted as 
appropriate. 

Debt 
Consolidated debt at 31 March 2002 was £705m, a 
year-on-year reduction of E100m, reflecting reduced hire 
purchase obligations. 

Interest receivable 
The Group's net interest receivable was £56m, This 
comprised £90m interest received on average investments 
of £1,000m, a rate of 4 7%, less £34m interest payable on 
average borrowings of £1r0m, a rate of 5.B k.. Last year net 
interest receivable was £106m, comprising £1 16m received 
on average investments of £1,815m (a rate of 6.4%) less 
£lOm payable on average borrowings of el 80m (a rate 
of 55%). 

Pensions 
The overall Group result includes a 525Dm (2001 £228m) 
benefit derived in accordance with SSAP 24 on the basis 
set out below The accounting charges are based or 
assumptons cn a'bes' estimate' basis, which reflects the 
difference between 'experienced' performance over the 
prudent actuarial assumption assumed in the funding rate. 
This has resulted in a tower regular accounting cost 
amounting to E53m of the benefit. The surplus in the 
Consignia Pension Plan allows a further reduction in cost - 
evaluated by the Scheme actuary using their 'best estimate' 
assumptions - provid:eg £164rn benefit, with the interest on 
the tong-term pension debtor of £33m malting up the final 
element of the benefit 

The new accounting. standard FRS 17-Retirement benefits, 
introduces radical changes to accounting for pensions and 
similar benefits. Consignia has adopted this standard and 
is complyrg with :he transitions arrangements. The balance 
sheet aspects are disclosed in note 21 to the Group 
accounts. The 2002.03 accounts will make profit and loss 
disclosures in accordance with the new standard, whilst the 
2003-04 accounts wit report all pension costs and related 
information in accordance with the new standard. It is 
anticipated that the full adoption of FRS 17 will worsen the 
reported profits for 2003-04 by some £150m, compared with 
the posf ion if the old standard were to apply. 

Postcomm competition proposals 
The Postal Services Commission (Postcomm) was set up as 
an Independent regulator for the industry. On 26 March 2001, 
Consignia was granted its first licence, which required it to 
provide a universal postal servicce at a uniform affordable 
price- During the year, Postcomm issued interim licences 
to other operators of business postal services - Days, Hays, 
TNT and UK Mail. 

On 29 May 2002, Postcomm announced their decisions on 
the introduction of competition into the UK postal market, ire 
three-phased approach adopted by Postcomm comprises: 

From 1 January 2003- the liberalisation of bulk mail posted n 
volumes above 4.000 items (from a single site and in identical 
size format) will take place This is expected to open up 30% 
of the domestic mail market, as measured by revenue, to 
competition. In addition, other operators will be able to 
consolidate and convey ma for Consignia to undertake final 
delivery. Postcomm will continue to license niche services. 

From 1 Aprlt 2005- the butte mail threshold will be reduced 
to open up 60% of the market, by revenue, to competition. 

From 1 April 2007 - the whole of the UK postal market WI be 
Liberalised and open to competition. 

Consignia estimates that after the full effects of competition 
have worked through, over the next 3105  years, it could ose 
around 30% of its current market share in terms of both 
revenue and volume. 

Sourcing reviews 
Consignia is examining the feasibility of using outsourcing 
partners for some of its support services, This is designed 
to create the maximum value from support services and 
realise commercial potential. A new partnership venture 
covering the Group's occupational health needs has been 
concluded and others are in negotiations. 

Ac, c iont6 2n:;' ::ur32. 3 
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European Monetary Union (EMU) 
The Board has established a European More~ary Union 
Committee. The UK has yet to decide on entry to the EMU 
and Consignia has evaluated the implicariars of both entry 
and non-entry. 

Consigns companies operating within the participating 
countries successfully managed the introduction of euro 
notes and coins on 1 January 2002. The introduction of the 
euro eliminates exchange rate risks between the former 
currencies of participating countries. What the UK remains 
outside of EMU, and Consigns reports m Sterling, the need 
to move funds to and from our oversees businesses means 
that we will remain exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations 
between the euro and Sterling. The new currency will also 
have implications on our Bureau de Change service. 

Major project investment 
As pan of the drive to modernise our iriraslruclure, the Group 
it vested some £320m on a number of key programmes, 
including £94m to upgrade the mails and parcels 
infrastructure, £52m for counter services automation including 
universal banking of £49m, £98m to provide high quality 
IT infrastructure, £43m on the development of new products 
and services and £24m relating to acquisitions of subsidiary 
undertakings, including £9m for European parcels businesses 
within the GLS network. 

National Lottery 
On 5 August 1999, The Post Office entered into an agreement 
writ Cameot (the National Lottery operator) to acquire a 20% 
holding in the company at a cost of £21 m. Camelot has 
subsequently been awarded a second licence for seven 
years, which came into effect on 27 January 2002. At the 
same time, Camelot became an associate of the Group. 

Dividends 
The Government. as shareholder has indicated that it will not 
be seeking a dividend in respect of 2002. £244m has been 
earmarked as a notional dividend covering 20CC and 2001 
and this is currently held within our short-term investments. 

4 i ,. ,ut.irm; .ii ier .

Future prospects 
The financial prospects for 2002-03 will be heavily influenced 
by the up front costs of driving a lower operating cost base, 
downsizing and introducing new business models and 
service patterns. Additionally, the recent pay settlement with 
the Communication Workers Union will add in excess of £70m 
to next year's operating costs, whilst delay to postal tariff 
increases - which the Regulate, will be Invited to consider 
will adversely affect profitability Higher National Insurance 
Contributions will further increase our cost base, from April 
2003, by some £40m per annum. 

We plan to invest some £350m in capital expenditure next 
year to enhance further our ;rtrastruclure. 

Our move to a single delivery at a consistent time six days 
a week with other efficiency measures across the Group will 
result in a further 17,000 jobs becoming redundant over the 
next three years. These plans are expected to cost some 
£500m. included within this are redundancy costs of £350m 
associated with the move to a single delivery, which should 
produce gross savings in excess of £356r per annum as part 
of an overall cost reduction programme to produce gross 
savings of £1 4bn per annum by 2005. 

Overall, we expect trading tosses to continue into next year 
at a similar level with further exceptional costs of around 
£500m in the first trait of the year, mainly as a result Of the 
announced changes to the UK mails delivery patterns. 

The Board as co-rim teed to meeting tie substantial 
challenges provided by a new competitive and regulatory 
environment by both driving through changes and 
substantially reducing our costs. 

GRO 
Marisa Casscni 
Group Finance Director 
London 
12 Jurst 2002 
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Directors' Report 

The Directors present the first Group aricourits for Consignia 
Holdings plo, These accot:nix relate to the 53 weeks enced 
31 March 2002, but in respect of Consignia plc, additionally cover 
the period between incorporation, on 10 January 2001, and 
25 March 2001, during which time no tracing actrvty took place. 

Principal activities 
The Group provides a nationwide and international distribution 
service. The Group also provides access to a wide range of 
financial and retail services through its network of Post Office 
branches. 

Review of the business and future developments 
Under the terms of the Postal Services Act 2000 (the Act) the 
assets and'iabilities of The Post Office Corporation were 
transferred to Consignia Holdings pie and Its subsidiary, 
Consignia plo The Act a so conferred some commercial 
freedoms that were not available to The Post Office. During the 
year, some of Consignia plc's assets were taken on by Post Office 
Counters Limited, which was renamed Post Office l cited on 
1 October 2001. Thiswholy-owned subsidarywil be responsible 
for providing counter services on behalf of the Group. 

Arevlew of the Group's business and future developments 
is presented in the annual Review, 

Results and dividends 
The toss on ordinary activates before taxation amounted 
to £1,124rn (2001 a restated profit of £81m). Aftertaxation and 
minority interests, the loss was £940rn (2001 a restated profit of 
£49m). The restatement reflects the introduction 
of FRS 12, which requires a change in accounting for deferred 
taxation and the Board's decision to adopt the historic cost 
accounting convention, 

The Government indicated that when the Postal Services Act 
2000 had received Royal Assent, it would seek a dividend 
payment from Consignia Holdings plc in respect of the final two 
years' trading of The Post Office Corporation. The Shareholder 
is considering a request from the Board of Directors that no 
dividend payment be made in respect of pre-incorporation 
trading. The Secretary of State for Trade and ''dusty 
announced on 25 Mach 2002 that the Shareholder would 
forego the dividend for this financial year. 

Political and charitable contributions 
During the year the Group made charitable contributions of 
£444,623 (2001 £847,430). No poitical contributions were made. 

Supplier payment policy 
The policy at tine Company and its principal operating 
subsidiaries is to use their purchasing power fairly. Payment 
terms are agreed in advance for all major contracts. For tower 
value transactions, standard payment terms (shown on the 
purchase order) apply. The policy is to make payments within 45 
days of receiving a vat  invoice, The Company and its principal 
operating subsidiaries in the UK have sought to comply whh the 
DTI's Better Payment Practice Code. Copies of this can be 
obtained from the DTL This code replaced the CBI prompt 
payment code, As the Cor' parry is a nor-operating company, 
the creditor days are zero. The creditor days of the operating 
subsidiaries can be found in their accounts. 

Land and buildings 
From 26 March 2001. the Group changed its accounting poly 
relating to fixed assets from the modified historic cost to the 
historic cost accounting convention. In the opinion of the 
Directors, the aggregate market value of the Group's land and 
boitdinge cxceed5 the net book value of £1,244rn by a 
considerable margin. 

Post balance sheet events 
Details of post balance sheet events are included in note 26 to 
the accounts 

Directors and their Interests 
The Directors of the Company and details of changes during the 
year are given on page 8. The Chairman is appointed by the 
Secretary of State, all other Directors are appointed by the 
Company with the Secretary of State's consent. 

N"fi Government is the Company's sole Shareholder 
and accordingly tine Directors have no interest in shares 
of the Company. 

The Directors' biographical details are included on pages 34 
and 35 of the annual Revew. 

Employees 
The Group employs more titan 220,090 people and is one 
of the UK's largest employers. The majority of staff are 
employed in the UK. 

The Groups policy is to encourage effective communication 
and consultation between employees and management, 
particular y on matters relating to strategy, financial and 
economic rectors that may influence the Group's performance. 
This is ach'eved through the use of an extensive range of 
corrnmunlcaton charur,els, +.nclading magazines, 'briefings, open 
forums and an intraret website. Employees have various bonus 
schemes, significant elements of which are based on business-
related targets. 

Regular Eneioyee Ornn on Surveys are conducted to allow 
employees an opportuniy to express their views and opintons 
on important issues. This two-waycorivuunicat ion encourages 
all employees to contribute towards making business 
improvements. 

We actively encourage continuous training and skill 
development for all employees to ensure achievement of 
corporate and indiv;daal objectives. Management development 
and training programmes have been designed to attract 
and retain the Lost people. The Group has worked with the 
unions to introduce several innovative working practices to 
improve efficiency. 

Disabled employees 
The Group's policy is to give full consideration to applications 
for employment from disabled persons. Employees who 
become disabled whilst employed receive full support through 
the provision of training and special equipment to facilitate 
continued employment where practicable, The Group provides 
training, career development and promotion to disabled 
employees wherever appropriate. 

An Equal Opportunities policy is maintained in all respects 
including dsab'lity, age, religion, colour, sex, nationality. ethnic 
origin, sexual orientation, race, creed and marital status. 

Going concern 
As outlined in "ore A of Accounting policies and general notes, 
there I5 a f undamenlai uncerrrinty concernir g the outcome of 
'he funding discussions with Government as towhether or rot 
,he Group can be considered to be a going concern, Our plans 
require kr'.at funding of some £2.41w seer tote next three years. 
The Company is in active discussions w th Government about 
how future cash requirements are to be funded. Government 
approval to fund the renewal plan and a dacts on on the funding 
of the social Post Office network is critical to our continuing 
operations. The Directors believe that the outcome of funding 
discussions Writ Government will be favourable. On this basis, 
after consideration of cash f•-ow projections, the Directors 
consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial 
statements on a going concern basis. 

Auditors 
During the year, Ernst & Young acted as auditor to the Company 
until 28 June 2001. On 28 June 2001, Ernst & Young transferred 
its business to a limbed liability partnership. 
Ernst & Young LLP incorporated under the Limited Liability 
Partnerships Act 2000. The Directors consented to treating the 
appointment of Ernst & Young as extending to Ernst & Young 
LLP with eff Oct 'rom 28 ,tune 2001. At the Annual Genera{ 
Meeting a resolution will be proposed to reappo`nt Ernst & 
Young LLP as auditors, 

By order of the Board 
. _._._._.-.-._.-.-._._.-.-._.-.-.-.-.-.-._.-.-._.-.-.-._.-.-._.-..., 

GRO 
Jonathan Evans 
Secretary 
London 
12 June 2002 
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Corporate Governance 

Statement by the Directors on compliance with 
the Combined Code 
The Group is committed to high standards of corporate 
governance. This statement describes how the principles of 
corporate governance are applied by the Group and its 
compliance with the Combined Code (the Code). 

The Group has been in full compliance with the provisions of 
the Combined Code throughout the year and up to the date 
of approval of these accounts, in so far as they are 
appropriate to a pubic ccmpany with a single shareholder. 
The exceptions are that a senior non executive Director has 
not been designated and that Directors are normally 
appointed by the Company wth the Secretary of State's 
consent, Thus, there is no need for a Nominations 
Committee. The Secretary of State also approves the 
remuneration of both executive and non executive Directors. 

The Board and Its committeag 
Details at the Board and committees are set out below 

The Board 
the hoard is responsible for setting the objectives and 
strategy of the Group and for nenitoring performance. The 
board usually meets monthly, and has defined those matters 
which are reserved exclusively for its consideration. The 
Board currently comprises a non executive Chairman, four 
executive Directors and three non executive Directors, There 
are also two additional non executive Director vacandes, 
which the Company is seeking to fill. Executive Directors have 
rolling 12-month contracts and non executive Directors are 
generally appointed for a two-year term. 

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the 
Chairman and Chief Executive. All non executive Directors are 
considered independent. 

Directors may take independent professional advice in the 
furtherance of their duties, at the Group's expense. All 
f)irectors have access to the advice and services of the 
Company Secretary. 

The following committees deal with specific aspects of the 
Group's management: 

Audit and Risk Committee 
The Audit and Risk Committee consists of non executive 
Directors: Rosemary Theme (Chairman), Alan Leighton and 
Miles Templeman. 

The Audit and Risk Committee provides a forum for reporting 
by both internal and external auditors and is responsible for a 
wide range of matters including: 

monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls; 
reviewing the half year and annual accounts before their 
submission to the Board; 
advising the Board on the appointment of external auditors 
and on their remuneration both for audit and non-audit 
work, 
discussing the nature, scope and outcomes of the audit 
with external auditors; 

--keeping under review the independence and objectivity of 
the external and internal auditors. 

As part of its continuing role. the Committee has always 
considered the independence of the external auditors and will 
continue to do so taking into consideration the lessons 
Teamed from Enron, 

Executive Board 
The Chef Executive, John Roberts, chairs the Executive 
Board, which comprises all executive Directors and certain 
other senior executives of the Group. The Executive Board 
develops and monitors deployment of the Group's strategy, 
annual operating plans and budgets for Board approval. It 
reviews operational activities arid sets policies where these 
are not reserved to the Board. 

Investment Board 
The Investment Board is chaired by Marisa Cassoni and is 
responsible for reviowing major investment projects and 
approving projects within the authorities devolved by the 
Board. 

Mergers and Acquisitions Board 
The Mergers and Acquisitions Board is chaired by John 
Roberts and comprises Marisa Cassoni, Jerry Cope and 
Martin Gafsen, the Head of Mergers and Acquisitions. The 
Board is responsible for reviewing prospective transactions 
for commercial and strategc effectiveness and giving 
authorisatlon on behalf of the Group r.p to an agreed limit. 

Pensions Committee 
The Pensions Committee is chaired by Marisa Cassoni. The 
Committee is responsible for reviewing funding, benef'ts, 
scheme structure and strategic developments impacting on 
the Group's occupational pension schemes. The Commrftee 
represents the Group in discussions with the Trustees of the 
Group's occupationa' penmen schemes. 

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee develops the Company's 
policy on executive Directors' remuneration for approval by 
the Board and the Secretary of State. The Remuneration 
Committee, cans  of non executve Directors The 
membership is Miles'empleman (Chairman), Allan '_e!ghtor, 
John Lloyd and Rosemary Thorne. 
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Internal Control 

The Board is responsible for the system of Internal control and 
risk managerne:rl as well as the timely review of its 
effectiveness, The system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate the risk cf failu'e to achieve business objectives and 
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or Use. 

There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the significant risks faced by the Group in 
accordance with the guidance detailed by the Turnbull 
Committee as pars of the Carr pined Code. The Board 
regularly reviews this process. :! he process has been in place 
for the full year and up to the date o anprovai of these 
accounts. The key processes pi Internal control and risk 
management include the fo lowing: 

Management structure 
The business units have authority to managewithin the limits 
set by the Board and within the scope of reserved powers. 
The Code of Busness Standards sets the principles of 
professionalism and integrity for employees of the Group. 

ldonttffeatton and evaluation Of business risks 
A process of internal control self-assessment encompasses 
at areas of the Group. The process defines significant risks 
and the cor,rols !n place to manage them and requires each 
bcsinuss unit Managicg D rector to undertake formal 
assessment of the effectiveness of the control processes. 
Ti-  e information is communicated to the Board. The internal 
audit and risk managerent function regularly reviews the 
Group's risks for coverage, relevance and effective 
management. The function also undertakes regular reviews of 
the most significant areas of risk and ensures that key 
controls remain in place and reports its findings to the Audit 
and Risk Comm ttee. 

Report on Directors' Remuneration 

're Remuneratior Committee is made up wholly of non 
execuive Directors as outlined on page S Ihro,4-out the 
year, the Company has applied the principles in Section I of 
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the Code) 
and has complied with the Code, 

The Board is ultimately responsible for the framework and 
costs of executive remuneration and the material terms of the 
service contracts offered to all Directors, which require the 
consent of the Secretary of State. The Committee's role is to 
develop the remuneration policy for executive Directors and, 
speoticafly, to recommend their salaries, benefits, including 
bonuses, and other terms and condition of employment. The 
Committee also recommends terms for their cessation of 
employment. 

In the oedomi ance of 'ts role, the Committee has access to 
professional advwers, both within the Company and 
externally. 

Policy of remuneration of Directors 
Remuneration policy and arrangements are kept under review 
to ensure that the Company can attract and retain executives 
of the necessary qualty in a complex business and a 
competitive international marketplace. 

Remuneration packages for executive Directors comprise the 
following elements: 

Basic salary 
Salaries are reviewed annually and appropriate increases are 
recommended wt efe the Committee believes that it Is 
necessary to rotted performance, increased responsibilities 
and market pressures. 

Information and financial reporting system 
Tie Group's planning, financial and reporting procedures 
include annual budgets, which are reviewed and approved by 
the Board. Performance Is monitored regularly by reference to 
key performance indicators, updated forecasts and 
Information on the key risk areas. 

Audit and Risk Committee 
The Committee reports to the Board and meets as a 
minimum on a quarterly basis to monitor a-rd review the 
effectiveness of the control environment. 

Risk Management Committee 
Ti's is a suit-committee of the Audit and Risk Committee. It 
sets the framework for risk management within the Group and 
insures integration with strategic planning. It also facilitates 
regular reporting of key risks, assesses the risks identified 
and the actions to manage the risks tc a desired level. 

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. The key elements include a review of internal 
audit reports, regular confirmations from local management 
and communication from the Chairman of the Audit and Risk 
Committee on the outcome of Audit and Risk Committee 
meetings. 

Performance• related bonus 
Executive Directors may earn a performance-related bonus 
for achievement of measurable targets. This bonus is based 
on targets set each year, internally and by the Shareholder. 
The maximum bonus for all executive Directors, except the 
Chief Executive, is 40% of basic pay; the Chief Executive can 
achieve a maximum 0150%. Most targets relate to financial 
performance and quality of service, with the greater 
proportion available for profit achievement. 

Allan Leighton was appointed as non executive Chairman on 
25 March 2002. His performance-related bonus 
arrangements had not been finalised at the time these 
accounts were approved. 

Benefits 
Benefits Incorporate all benefits arising from their 
employment. In the main, these relate to the provision of 
company cars, life insurance and health insurance plus the 
casfrequivarent of any benefits not taken. 

Pensions 
The Group has a liability  to pay pensions in respect of 
Directors' services, with the consent attire Secretary of State 
and, for some executive Directors, makes contributions to 
pension schemes for this purpose. The Company has setup 
a Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefit Scheme (FURBS). 
FURBS will provide benefits to Directors and employees 
Whose contributions to the Company schema are restricted 
oy the Inland Revenue earnings cap. 

Contracts of service 
Executive Directors have rotting 12-month contracts and non 
executive Directors are generally appointed tore 
iwayear term. 

A:,,...jnls 20m;. rnetn 7 
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Report on Directors' Remuneration 

Directors remuneration, excluding pensions, was as follower 

CHAIRMAN (NON EXECUTIVE) 
Allan Leighton 
Neville Bain (retired 31 December 2001) 

EXECUTIVE 
John Roberts 
Jerry Cope 
Marisa Cassoni (appointed 1 February 2001) 
Richard Close (died 6 April 2000) 

NON EXECUTIVE 
John Lloyd 
Mites Tempteman 
Rosemary Thorne 
Mike ICnski (resigned 12 February 2002) 

Total 2002 

Total 2001 

No fees (2001 nil) were paid to third parties in respect of 
services provided by Directors. 

Allan Leighton was appointed as a non executive Director on 
2 April 2001 and was subsequently appointed interim 
Chairman on 8 January 2002 and Chairman on 25 March 
2002. 

David Miffs was appointed as an executive Director on 
15 April 2002. 

The figures in the tab e represent emoluments earned and 
receivable as Directors during the financial year, whenever 
paid. Such emoluments as no:rma ty paid in the same 
financial year with the exception of the performance-related 
bcnus, which is paid in the year following that in which it is 
earned. This is a change from the previous year when only 
those emoluments actually paid in the financial year were 
d sclosed. Accordingly, the figures for 2001 have been 
restated to include the effect of a salary increase for Neville 
Bain, John Roberts and Jerry Cope that was effective from 
October 2000 but not settled until May 2001. In addition, the 
restated figures include fees totalling 01,451 relating to 2001 
that were not paid until 2002. 

During the year, the Secretary of State as Special Shareholder, 
approved an increase of 10% in the base salaries of John 
Roberts and Jerry Cope. Both Directors have agreed to waive 
the increase for the financial year ended 31 March 2002. 

Pensions 
Tie Group normally offers its most senior employees 
membership of the Consignia Senior Executive Pension Plan 
(CSEPP). Details of CSEPP are set out in note 21 to the 
accounts. The plan is a funded, Inland Revenue approved 
final salary occupational pension scheme. The scheme 
provides for a two-thirds final pensionabe salary at normsl 
retirement age, subject to the recassaw pens onabie service 
and Inland Revenue earnings cap Pensions in payment are 
increased annually in tine with Hetai, Prices Index (RPI), 
subject in some cases to a cap. Pensions are also payable to 
dependents on the death of the member and a lump sum is 
payable it death occurs in service. 

John Roberts was a member of the Consignia Pension Plan 
(CPP) Section B until 23 November 2001, when he transferred 
aria 1/30th basis to CSEPI? with a one-year-for-one-year 
service transfer Details of CPP are in note 21 to the accounts. 

Jerry Cope was a member of CPP Section B until 
23 November 2001. He was also a member of the Post Office 

War k,ding m,r w 
260'! 

llseo suture Po&m,orrice 0.010 T"a 

and fees -'verse bones 6enefh 2002 so rearatod 
r £ £ F £ 

21,093 - - 21,093 -
71,697 - - 71,697 95,352 

211,560 - 14,292 225,852 219,314 
144,480 - 12,374 156,854 151,899 
295,000 - 13,532 308,532 49,594 

- - - - 2,868 

21,500 - - 21,500 16,657 
23,054 - - 23,054 17,700 
24,000 - - 24,000 18,227 
20,857 - - - 20,8S7 18,227 

833,241 - 40,198 873,439 - 

567,257 - 22,581 - 589,838 

Senior Executive Pension Scheme (POSEPS), which was an 
Inland Revenue-approved top-up scheme. From 
24 November, Jerry Cope became a member of CSEPP on a 
1/30th basis and ceased membership of the other schemes. 
Previous service was transferred on a one-year-for-one-year 
basis. 

From I April 2001, Marisa Cassoni became, a rrlerriber of 
CSEPP on a 1/30th basis. Her pension is funded by a 
combination of the company scheme and FURBS, for which 
provision is being made in the accounts. The cost of FURBS 
in 2002 was £100,000 (2001 £17,000). The Post Office 
Corporation provided life assurance protection from 
1 February 2001 1025 March 2001. Life cover was provided in 
line with normal death-in-service benefits of four times salary 
(as restricted by the Inland Revenue earnings cap). Marisa 
Cassoni's pension benefits have been augmented by the 
employer to give ;her two months' additinnal pensionable 
service in respect of her service in the previous year. 

The pension contributions and entitlements for Neville Bain 
were determined using the rules of CPP Section C. Details of 
th s scheme are set out in note 21 to the accounts. Neville 
Bain retired from the Company en 31 December 2001 and 
receives a pension of £5,839 per annum. 

The accumulated total accrued pensions for John Roberts 
and Jerry Cope have been adjusted to reflect the enhanced 
annual pensions that are payable in lieu of the lump sum 
entitlements, which were payable from their previous 
schemes. 

Pension scheme benefits 

t`PP Qv-early bPP, CPR iforonerly POPPi CSEPP 
59Gt!tr a Smclinn c 

Arnuat pension 
entitlement Tract on of 
final year salary (which 
constitutes only basic 
salary) for each year's 
service 1(80:h* 1/both* Varies 

Lump sum 3 times nil nil 
annual 

pension 

*A fraction of 1/45th applied where a Director or employee 
was also a member of POSEPS 
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The pension entitlements of the Directors at the year end were: 
Ir1C'ews in Transfer Moe of AsC f tutxter'1 total Cecr,eC perreran 

the aocrcteC tire erIX.eeue In At 
pension in the perin accrurt pennon At 25 March Wet 

faire intiattenl in the peed ar March 2115 as retains 
£ £ C C 

Neville Bain 989 14,100 5,839 4,850 
John Roberts 35,824 564,835 149,869 112,139 
Jerry Cope 15,588 219,416 75,931 59,334 
Marisa Cassoni 3,710 39,222 3,710 — 

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN1 I and 
excludes Directors contributions. The transfer value represents a liability Of the Company rather than any remuneration due to the 
individual and cannot be meaningfully aggregated with annual remuneration, as it is not money the individual is entitled to receive. 

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the accounts 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounts for 
each financie' year which give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group and of the 
profit or loss of the Group for that perod. 

In preparing those accounts Directors are required to: 
select suitable accounting policies and apply them 
consistently; 
-sake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 
orudsnt; 
state whether applicable accounting standards have been 
tel owed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the accounts, 

Independent auditor's report to the members of Consignia Holdings plc 

We have audited the Group's financial s'aterrents for the 
year ended 31 March 2002 which comprise the Group profit 
and loss account, the Group and Company balance sheets, 
the Group cash flow state:rcent and associated notes, the 
Group statement of total recognised gains and losses, 
accounting polices and genera' notes and the related notes 
1 to 29. These financial statements have been prepared on 
the basis of the accounting policies set out therein. 

Respective responsibilities of Directors and 
auditors 
Tie Director responsibil't es for preparing the annual 
Review and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards 
are set out in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities. 

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements 
and United Kingdom Auditing Standards. 

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial 
statements give a true and fair view and are properly 
prepared r accordance with the Companies Act 1985. 
We also report to you If. In our opinion., the: Directors' Report 
is not consistent with the financial sta'ernents, if the 
Company has not kept proper accounting records, it we 
have not received all the information and explanations 
we require for our audit, o' if information specified by law 
regarding Directors' remuneration and transactions with 
the Group is not disclosed, 

We rears other information contained in the accounts and 
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial 
statements. This other information comprises the Directors' 
Report, Financial Review, Corporate Governance statement 
and Directors' Remuneration statement. We consider the 
implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
financial statements. Cur responsibilities do not extend 
to any other information. 

Basis of audit opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom 
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence 
relevant to the amounts and discosures in the financial 

Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper 
accounting records are kept which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the Company 
and of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the 
accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. Directors 
are also responsible for ensuring that the assets of the 
Group are safeguarded and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregulaniieS. 

statements. ft also includes an assessment of the significant 
estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the 
preparation of the tnancial statements, rind of whether 'he 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's 
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all 
the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence 
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by 
fraud or other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we 
also ova dated the overall adequacy of the presentation 
of information in the financ'an statements. 

Fundamental uncertainty — going concern 
In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy 
of the disclosures made in accounting policy note A 
concerning the outcome of funding discussions with 
Government and the consequent fundamental uncertainty 
as to whether or rot the Group can be considered to be a 
going concern. The accounts do not `ficlude any adjustments 
that would result from Government rot approving appropriate 
funding or restricting access to current asset investments, as 
described it accounting policy note A. It is not practical to 
quantity the adjustments that might be required, but should 
any adjustments be required they would be significant. In 
view of the significance of this fundamental uncertainty we 
consider that it should be drawn to your attention but our 
opinion Is not qualified in this respect_ 

Opinion 
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Grouo 
as at 31 March 2002 sad of the loss of the Group for the 
year then ended and have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Lc f 
Ernst & Young LLP 
Registered Auditor 
London 
12 June 2002 
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Accounting policies and general notes 

The following accounting policies and general notes apply 
throughout the Group: 

A) Fundamental accounting concept note 
Current strategic plans indicate that funding totalling some 
£2.4bn is required over the next three years to restructure and 
reduce the cost base and to fund Post Office Limited, 

Potentially available cash and other current asset investments 
totalled £1,85Dm at 31 March 2002. Whilst the Company's 
Articles allow Consignia Holdings plc to borrow up to 
£5,000m, this is subject to prior approval by Government. 

The Company is in active discussions with Government as 
to how future cash requirements are to be funded, irefuding 
certain conditons and constraints on how ire current asset 
investments can be used to arrange National Loans Fund 
(NLF) finance and to support Post Office Limited. The 
Government has indicated that it will seek for the current 
asset investments of £1.8bn to be distributed from 
Consignia plc to Consignia Holdings plc. Financial support 
of Post Office Limited is conditional on the production of a 
business plan by September 2002, which is acceptable to the 
Company and the Secretary of State but funding has been 
permitted from current assets investments up to April 2003 
and for existing commitments that go beyond that date 
Government approval to fund the renewal plan and a decision 
on funding of the social Post Office network is critical to 
Consignia's continuing operations_ 

The Directors believe that the conditions and constraints 
imposed by the Secretary of State will be met and that the 
outcome of funding discussions with Government, described 
above, will be favourable. On this basis, after consideration of 
cash flow protections, the Directors consider app opriale to 
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, 
which assumes that the Croup wilt continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future, However, the margin of 
funds over requirements is not large and there can be no 
certainty in relation to this matter. 

Should Government fail to approve appropriate funding, the 
going concern basis would be invalid and adjustments would 
have to be made to reduce the value of the assets to their 
realisable amount, to provide Or any further iiahrities that 
might arise and to reclassify fixed assets and tong-term 
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities. 

B) Basis of preparation and change in 
accounting policy 
These are the first accounts prepared for the Group under 
a plc status, Previously the accounts were produced under a 
direction from the Secretary of State. By way of a scheme 
under Section W of the British Telecommunications Act 1981, 
the assets and liabilities of The Post Off  Corporation were. 
on 25 March 2001, transferred to Consignia plc in 
consideration of the issue of 50,000 ordinary shares in 
Consignia plc to The Post Office Corporation. On 26 March 
2001, the snares in Consignia plc, owned by The Post Office 
Corporation, were vested in Consignia Holdings plc under 
Section 62 of the Postal Services Ad 2000. Consignia 
Holdings plc was incorporated on 20 September 2000, and 
financial statements were completed for the period ended 
25 March 2001. Consignia plcwas incorporated an 
10 January 2001 and did not Fade prior to 26 March 2001. 

This reorganisation does not technically meet the merger 
rules of Schedule 4(A) to the Companies Act 1985 as there 
was no share-for-share transact-on. Nevertheless, in 
accordance with the principtes of FRS 6 for group 
reconstructions, the financial statemerte are presented as 
if The Post Office Group and its subsidiaries had been owned 
and controlled by the Company throughout. 
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The Directors consider that the application of acquisition 
accounting would fail to give a true and fair view of the 
Group's state of affairs and results because the Shareholder 
has had a continuing interest in The Post Office Group 
businesses both before and after the transfers. Due to the 
number and complexity of transactions involved, it is not 
practicable to quantify the effect of th,s departure. 

The comparative information shown 'states to the previous 
accounting period of The Post Office Group rather than the 
statutory accounting period of Consignia Holdings plc, which 
commenced on 20 September 2000, its date of incorporation. 

The accounts on pages 101035 have been prepared in 
accordance with applicable accounting standards under 
the historic cost accounting convention, except for the issue 
described in accounting policy note I(iii) and quantified 
in note 12. 

Consignia Holdings plc (the Company) has not presented its 
own profit and loss account, as permitted by the Companies 
Act 1985 s280(3). However, the results of the Company for the 
yeas r are in note 29. 

The Board reviewed the accounting policies adopted by 
The Post Office Corporation and decided that the historic cost 
accounting convention would be more appropriate for a plc. 
The prior year results have been restated to show the effect 
of this change. 

Three new Financial Reporting Standards have been issued 
by the Accounting Standards Board and where necessary, 
changes have been made to comply with these. The effects 
of the new standards areas follows: 

FRS 17 —Retirement benefits. The transitional arrangements 
will be phased over the three years ending March 2002, 
March 2003 and March 2004 respectively. Addional 
information relating to the dosing balance sheet is given 
in note 21. The pension cost figures in the accounts comply 
with SSAP 24. 

PAS 13— Accounting  policies The accounts reflect adoption 
of this standard. No material changes have arisen. 

FRS 19— Deferred tax. This standard requires that in general. 
deterred tax be prov'i'ded on a full provision basis instead of 
a partial provision basis, as applied formerly. The revised 
accounting policy is outlined in acco.. inti ng policy note K. 

C) Financial year 
The financial year ends on the last Sunday in March and 
accordi gly, these accounts cover the 63-week period ended 
31 March 2002 (the year) (2001 52 weeks). 

D) Basis of consolidation 
The accounts consolidate the accounts of Consignia 
Holdings plc and its subsidiary undertakings. These accounts 
consolidate the resu is of Consignia pie from its date of 
incorporation, as outlined in accounting policy note B. 

Entities, other than subsidiary undertakings in which the 
Group has a participating interest and over whose operating 
and financial policies tine Groupexerdses a significant 
influence, are treated as associates, In the accounts. 
associates am accounted for using the equity method. 

1 he Group operates through business units that make use 
of each other's services in order to take advantage of Group 
synergies, having regard to the mutual dependencies that 
exist. The Board's view is that there is a significant 
interdependency between mails and counter services. The 
interbusiness charges recognise this dependency. The 
Board's policy is to maintain controls to ensure that 
appropriate pricing principles are adhered to. 
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E) Turnover 
Turnover is the value of all services provided excluding VAT. 
In the case of mails and distribution, turnover comprises 
revenue receivable directly from customers and a measured 
share of stamp income. 

It is not considered that there is a material difference between 
turnover by origin and destination. 

F) Goodwill 
Goodwill arising on acquisition, being the excess of the 
consideration over the fair value of the separate y '.dentifiable 
net assets acquired, is capitalised and amortised one 
straighNine basis over its estimated useful economic life up 
to a maximum 01 20 years. It is reviewed for impairment at the 
end attire first full financial year following acquisition and 
thereafter as appropriate. 

G) Tangible fixed assets 
(i) Tangible fixed assets are recognised at cost nduding 
directly attributable costs in br'nging the asset into working 
condition for its intended use. 

()) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is provided on a 
straight-line basis by reference to original cost and to the 
remaining useful economic lives of assets and their estimated 
residual values. The lives assigned to major categories of 
tangible fixed assets are: 

Property: 
Freehold buildings up to 60 years 
Leasehold land and buildings the shortest of the 

period of the lease, 
60 years or the 
estimated remaining 
useful life 

Plant and machinery 3-35  years 
Motor vehicles 1 -12 years 
Fixtures and equipment: 

office machines 3-20 years 
computers 2 -7 years 
other 4 -25 years 

(ii) Impairment reviews of fixed assets are performed annually 
for assets with an estimated remaining useful life ie excess of 
50 years and additionally where there is an indication of 
impairment as defined by FRS 11. 

H) Leasing and hire purchase 
Assets acquired under finance leases orhire purchase 
agreements are capitalised and treated as tangible fixed 
assets. Depreciation is provided accordingly and the capital 
element of future 'rentals is included within creditors. Interest 
on such contracts is charged to the profit and loss account 
over the period of the contract, and represents a charge that 
relates to the proportion of the capital repayments 
outstanding. All other eases are regarded as operating 
teases and rentals are charged on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term,. 

I) Investments 
(i) In the Company's accounts, the investments in subsidiary 
undertakings and associates are stated at cost less provtsion 
for impairment for acquired undertakings and at net asset 
value for Internally formed companies. 

(if) Other fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less 
provision for Impairment. 

(iii) Government gilt-edged securities, held as current assets, 
are stated at market value at the balance sheet date and the 
difference between cost and market value is taken to the 
profit and loss account. This treatment is a departure from UK 
accounting roles which st p-late that unrealised profits be 
credited to a revaluation rename In the opinion of the 
Directors, the treatment adopted is necessary to present 
a true and fair view. The accounting treatment adopted 
represents a fairer reflection of the investment return. All other 
asset investments are treated according to standard UK 
accounting rules. 

J) Stocks 
Stocks comprise unissued Stores and in the case of counter 
services also include retail stocks. All stocks are carried at the 
lower of cost and net realisable value. 

K) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is generally provided n full on timing differences 
at the balance sheet date, at rates expected to apply when 
Vie lax liability (or asset) crystallises based on substantially 
enacted tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from the 
inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation 
computations in periods different from those In which they are 
included in the accounts 

Deferred tax is not recognised it the following instances: 

-on gains on disposal of used assets where, on the basis of 
available evidence, it is snore Ikely than not that the taxable 
gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged 
to tax only when there is a commitment to dispose of those 
replacement assets. 

- on unremitted earnings of subskiaries and associates 
where there is no commitment to remit those earnings. 

- deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
the Directors consider that it is more likely than not that 
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future 
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be 
deducted. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

L) Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 
Memoership of occupational pension schemes (as detailed 
innate 21) Is open to most permanent UK employees of the 
Group. All members of defined benefit schemes are 
ccnntracted out of the earnings-related pad of the State 
pension scherne. Overseas subsidiaries make separate 
arrangements for the provision of pensions and other post-
retirement bertelits. 

The defined benefit schemes are financed on the basis that 
the combined current service contributions payable by the 
employees and employer are sufficient to cover the cost of 
the benefits which are expected to accrue in the future to 
members. The charge to the profit and loss account is 
calculated so as to spread variations from regular cost and 
to amortise the surplus or deficit over the expected remaining 
service fives of the employees. The assets of the schemes are 
held in separate trustee administered funds. 

Valuations of the defined benefit schemes are carried out by 
independent professionally qualified actuaries at intervals not 
normally exceeding three years, as determined by the 
Trustees. In each year between aetuarel valuations, the 
actuaries perform a high-level review of the funding position 
of the schemes. 

The accounting charge for pensions reflects best estimate 
assumptions as required by SSAP 24, whereas the funding 
arrangements use a more cautious assumption for 
investment returns to assess the cash position of CPR This 
results in the cash payments being higher than the accounts 
charge for CPP The difference is dealt with through the long-
term pensions debtor in the balance sheet. 
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Accounting policies and general notes 

M} Research and development 
Expenditure on research and development is written off in the 
year in wh ch ii is incurred. 

H) Foreign currencies 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction (or at the contracted rate 
if the transaction is covered by a forward foreign currency 
contract). Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange 
ruling at the balance sheet date {or the appropriate forward 
contract rate). All differences are taken to the profit and loss 
account with the exception of differences on foreign currency 
borrowings which are used to finance or provide a hedge 
against foreign equity investments. These are taken directly 
to reserves together with the exchange difference on the 
carrying amount of the related investments. Tax charges and 
credits attributable to exchange differences on those 
borrowings are also dealt with in reserves. The accounts of 
overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the dlfferenccs 
arising from the translation of opening net investments airs 
taken to reserves. 

12 :),. ... xL.. X_ 

0) Derivative instruments 
The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to reduce 
exposure to foreign exchange rates. The Group's policy is 
that its derivative instruments quality for hedge accounting 
when the tot cowing criteria are met: 

- the instrument must be related to a foreign currency asset 
or liability that is probable and whose characteristics have 
been identified; 

- it must involve the same currency as the hedged item; and 
- it must reduce the risk of foreign currency movements on 

the Group's operations. 

The contracted rates are used to record the hedged item. 
As a result, gains and losses are offset against the Foreign 
exchange gams or losses onn the related financial assets and 
Liabilities Where the instrument is used to hedge a committed 
or probable future transaction, gains or losses are not 
recognised until the transaction occurs. 



POL00362149 
POL00362149 

Group profit and loss account 

2002 2001 

Notes: 

Turnover - continuing operations 
Ongoing 
Acquisitions 

Turnover 1 

Staff costs 2 
Depreciation and other amounts written off 
tangible and intangible fixed assets: 

Depreciation and amortisation 3 
Impairment 3 

Other operating charges 
Other operating income 3 

Total net operating costs 

Group operating (loss)/profit - continuing operations 
Ongoing 
Acquisitions 

Group operating (ioss)lprolit 
Share of operating profit in associates 
Impairment of goodwill in associates 

Total operating (loss)/profit: Group and 
share of associates 3 
Net profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets 4 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before interest 
Net interest receivable 5 

(Loss)fprofit on ordinary activities before taxation 
Taxation 6 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation 
Equity minority interests 

(Loss)/profit for the financial year 
Transfer to dividend reserve 7 

Loss transferred to reserves for 
the financial year 19 

woforma 
53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 

31 March 2002 26 March 2001 
as restated 

sat era Exceptionar scu a Excaptiorwl 
excaptional items exoeotorrd items 

dome -noro S) 15101 dams {nota41 Total 
fm Lm tnt On On On 

8,377 - 8,377 8.119 - 8,119 
31 - 31 

8,408 - 8,408 8.119 - 8,119 

(4,865) (513) (5,378) (4,671) (4671) 

(271) - (271) (277) - (277) 
- (446) (446) (9) - (9) 

(3,339) (179) (3,518) (3,155) (67) (3,222) 
- 19 19 15 - 15 

(8,475) (1,119) (9,594) (8,097) (67) (8,164) 

(67) (1,119) (1,186) 22 (67) (45) 

(67) (1,119) (1,186) 22 (67) 
 

(45) 
4 - 4 - - -

(5) (7) (12) - - - 

(68) (1,126) (1.194) 22 (67) (45) 
- 24 24 - 20 20 
- (10) (10) - - - 

(68) (1,112) (1,180) 22 (47) (25) 
56 - 56 108 - 106 

(12) (1,112) (1,124) 128 (47) 81 
179 (34) 

(945) 47 
5 2 

(940) 49 
- (98) 

(940) (44) 

a 2SCrr. 2L":; 13 
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Group statement of total recognised gains and losses 

2002 2001 
profcnra 

53 Weeks ended 52 weeks ended 
31 March 802 25 March 2201 

U res!ated 
Poles tM £m 

(Loss)/proflt for the financial year excluding share 
of profltl(loss) In associates (943) 50 
Share of associates profiU(loss) for the year 3 (1) 

(Loss)(protit for the financial year (940) 49 

Exchange differences on translation of net assets (15) 13 
Exchange differences on translation of loans 2 (3) 
Unrealised gain on associate transaction 10 15 - 

Total recognised (iosses)fgains for the financial year (938) 59 

Prior period adjustments: 
Historic cost accounting convention 9 (521) 
Deferred tax 18 (230) 

Total recognised losses since last accounts (1,699) 

There is no statement of historical cost profits and losses as the accounts are produced under the historic cost 
accounting convention. 

14 
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Balance sheets 

Group Company 
pralorma 

0131 8125 0131 0* 25 
March 2002 March 2001 Nerch 2002 March 2001 

as ra5Wted 
Note. £m £m £m Cm 

Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 8 146 421 - -
Tangible assets 9 1,783 2,028 - 
Investments in associates 10 80 27 - -
Other investments 10 14 33 2,725 -

2,023 2,507 2,725 - 

Current assets 
Stocks 42 44 - -
Debtors - receivable beyond one year 11 549 375 - -
Debtors - receivable within one year 11 882 1,022 - -
Investments 12 1,800 2,163 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,054 891 - - 

4,327 4,495 - - 

Creditors - amountS falling due 

within one year 13 (2,340) (2,487) - - 

Net current assets 1,887 2,008 - - 

Total assets less current liabilities 4,010 4,515 2,725 -

Creditors - amounts falling due after 
more than one year 14 (855) (697) - -

Provisions for ilabilities and charges 18 (750) (280) - -

2,805 3,538 2,725 - 

Capital and reserves 
Called up share capital 28 - -- - 
Profit and loss account 2,346 3,299 2,481 
Dividend reserve 244 244 244 
Other reserves 15 - - - 

Total capital and reserves 19 2,605 3,543 2,725 -
Equity minority interests - (5) - -

2,805 3,538 2,725 - 

GRO' 
rcIFto GRO 

Allan Leighton John Roberts Marisa Cassoni 

Approved by the Board on 12 June 2002. 

,,.~ .. 20:J 15 
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Group cash flow statement 

2002 2001 
prOtw~'o 

53 weeks ended 52 w5555 erred 

31 MSS*5002 25k1ech1,001 
NvI .5 fxd C. 

Net cash flow from operating activities (a) 12 330 

Dividends from associates 1 1 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 
interest received 111 114 
Interest paid (32) (11) 

Net cash inflow from returns on investments 
and servicing of finance 79 103 

Taxation 
Corporation tax recovered/(paid) 13 (67) 

Cash inflow/(outflow) from taxation 13 (67) 

Capital expenditure and financial Investment 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (216) (303) 
Purchase of fixed asset investments (6) (21) 
Sale of tangible fixed assets 61 54 
Sale of fixed asset investments 4 6 

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure 
and financial Investment (157) (264) 

Acquisitions and disposals 
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (14) (167) 
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings — (1) 
Purchase of interest in associates (26) (24) 
Payment of deterred consideration 
in respect of prior years' acquisitions (9) (32) 

Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals (48) (224) 

Cash outflow before use of liquid resources and financing (100) (121) 

Management of liquid resources 
Net movement in current asset investments (b) 363 (150) 

Nei cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 263 (271) 

Financing 
Repayment of hire purchase agreements (b) (83) (179) 
New long-term loans (b) 1 512 
Repayment of loans (b) (9) (5) 

Net cash (outflow)/Inflow from financing (91) 328 

Increase in cash 172 57 

16 +i .'.!:::;+r; 2001 20.(12 
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Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds 

2002 2001 
protcrma 

53 waaka ended 52 wee'i,e ward 
31 March 2002 25 annrch 2001 

NCts On 12,, 

Increase in cash 112 57 
Repayment of hire purchase agreements {b) 83 179 
New Song-term loans (b) (1) (512) 
Repayment of loans (b) 9 5 
Cash flow from management of liquid resources (b) (363) 150 

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows (100) (121) 
Exchange differences (b) (8) (3) 

Movement in net funds (108) (124) 
Net funds at 26 March 2001 (b) 2,266 2,390 

Net funds at 31 March 2002 (b) 2,158 2,266 

Notes to the cash flow statement 

(a) Reconciliation of operating loss to 2002 2001 
net cash flow from operating activities p u:orma 

as rOsterd 
fm 

Group operating toss (1,186) (45) 
Depreciation and amortisation 271 277 
impairment 446 9 

(469) 241 

Change In operating assets and liabilities 
Stocks 2 (1) 
Debtors (69) (235) 
Creditors (100) 208 
Counter services client balances (4) 106 
Provisions 652 9 

Net cash Inflow from operating activities 12 330 

Cash flows relating to operating exceptional items 
There was a net cash outflow of £53m in 2002 in respect of redundancy payments (2001 a net cash outflow of £37m in respect of 
television licence administration contract tosses(. 

(b) Analysis of net funds At 
26 March At 

2001 Exyeanse 31 Match 
r,olrrnra Cosh ibis d~trerwzces 2002 

£m £m to tin 
Cash at bank and in hand 891 172 (9) 1,054 
Debt due beyond one year (580) (1) - (581) 
Debt due within one year (19) 9 1 (9) 
Hire purchase agreements due beyond one year (106) 36 - (70) 
Hire purchase agreements due within one year (83) 47 - (36) 
Current asset investments 2,163 (363) - 1,800 

2,266 (100) (8) 2,158 

17 
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Notes to the accounts 

1 Segmental Information 2002 

55 weeks ended 
31 March 2it02 

Sews 
Total berreeen External 

Analysts of turnover salsa 5e5mm*s sorcerer 

By class of business £m Em Em 

Mails and parcels 7,367 (17) 7,350 
Counter services 1,290 (337) 953 
Other businesses 212 (107) 105 

Total 8,869 (461) 8.408 

By geographic area of origin 
United Kingdom 7,752 
Rest of the World 656 

Total 8,408 

Analysis of (toss)/profit before taxation 2002 

Ope,Gesnat Pensions cxoeptional Exceptional 
relhily benefit items ,terra Total 

By class of business Cm Em £m £m On 

Mails and parcels (138) 205 67 (1,022) (955) 
Counter services (164) 20 (144) (94) (238) 
Other businesses (15) 25 10 (3) 7 
Pensions benefit 250 (250) - - - 

Group operating 
(loss)/profit (67) - (67) (1,119) (1,186) 

Share of operating profit in associates 4 - 4 
Impairment of goodwill in associates (5) (7) (12) 
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 24 24 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking - (10) (10) 
Net Interest receivable 56 - 56 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities 
before taxation (12) (1,112) (1,124) 

By geographic area of origin 
United Kingdom (17) (868) (885) 
Rest of the World (50) (251) (301) 

Group operating(loss)tproflt (67) (1,119) (1,186) 

Share of operating profit in associates 4 - 4 
Impairment of goodwill In associates (5) (7) (12) 
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 24 24 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking - (10) (10) 
Net interest receivable 56 - 56 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary actavitIes 
before taxation (12) (1.112) (1,124) 

Analysis of net assets/(Iiabilltles) 
By class of business 
Mails and parcels 1,225 
Counter services (286) 
Other businesses (35) 

904 
Share of net assets of associates 80 
Unallocated not assets 1,621 

Total net assets 2,605 

2001 
txalorma 

52 weeks eared 
AIiS(G5 aces 
as,astated 

wales 
'ih'a vvhvee, externsr 
sales segments mass 

£m £rt? On 

7,079 (21) 7,058 
1,196 (289) 907 

248 (94) 154 

8,523 (404) 8,119 

7,512 
607 

8,119 

2001 
ee'sre prc'lerrnn 

Operatipnal Pensions vxc6,ntorvai Exceptional en rastatrs 
actioty bevel hems ,trams Total 

Lm £m £m

(150) 185 35 - 35 
(57) 19 (38) - (38) 

1 24 25 (67) (42) 
228 (228) - - - 

22 - 22 (67) (45) 

20 20 

106 - 106 

128 (47) 81 

59 (67) (8) 
(37) - (37) 

22 (67) (45) 

20 20 

106 - 106 

128 (47) 81 

2,257 
(151) 

(3) 

2,103 
27 

1,408 

3,538 

Urralku ated net assets ptincipatly inclsde cunerd asset ktvestmenls, tax end berrelwings. All net assets ether than L143m (2061 £42610) 
were located in the United Kingdom. In crder to reflect tie segmental analysis more appropriately, a number of changes have been made 
tonames, presentation and structure of the segments. Itie mails and distribution segment has been renamed 'mails and parcels'. In addition, 
Consignia's philatelic business has been moved from 'other' to 'mails and parcels', resulting in a prior year transfer of £51m profit between 
these segments. As a result of a reorganisationi within the Group, Consignia's cash distribution business has been moved from 'mails and 
parcels to 'counter services', resulting in a prior year transfer of £8m profit between these segments. Last year's figures have been restated to 
reflect these changes. 

16
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2 Staff costs 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Pension costs (note 21) 

2002 

Cm 

4,778 
323 
277 

5,378

A loan to one officer totalling £5,516 (2001 as restated - one officer £7,212) was outstanding at the end of the year. 

Staff costs include £513m (£313m wages and salaries and £200m pension costs) which is included in exceptional items. 

Average staff numbers, calculated on a full-time equivalent basis, including part-time employees were: 

2002 

Malls and parcels 190,107 
Counter services 14,564 
Other 17,139 

Group total 221,810 

2002 

Subpostmasters at year end 14,901 

Details of Directors' remuneration and pension entitlements are included on pages 7 to 9. 

3 Operating loss 2002 

Group operating foss)?profit is stated after charging/(crediting): 
Depreciation: 

Owned assets 
Assets held under hire purchase agreements 

Impairment write-down: 
Owned assets 
Assets herd under hire purchase agreements 

Intangible assets: 
Amortisation 
Impairment 

Subpostmasters' costs 
Research and development expenditure 
Operating lease charges: 

Land and buildings 
Vehicles and equipment 

Counter services net interest receivable (note 5) 
Expenditure reimbursed to: 

Postcomm 
Postwatch 

Other operating income: 
Participation fee in respect of a sale and hire purchase 
back transaction 

Auditors' remuneration: 

Audit services 

Non-audit services: 
Due diligence and taxation services in respect 
of acquisition and disposal activity - UK 
Regulatory, taxation, accounting and other 
assurance services - UK 
Other advisory services - UK 

Total non-audit services - UK 
Overseas 

Total non-audit services 

£m 

220 
28 

148 
39 

23 
259 

717 

565 
9 

136 
50 
(1) 

5 
7 

2002 
sass 

1,269 

2001 
n"n'wma 

sr„ 

4,285 
321 
65 

4,671 

2001 
prote,,r.a 

188,297 
11,815 
17,852 

217,964 

2001 
pre Dana 

en'n Welled 

15,217 

2001 
pr.., 

an restated 
£m 

250 
9 

4 

18 
5 

286 

551 
11 

107 
29 

(11) 

4 
2 

(15) 

2001 
pro'orrra 

von 
1,078 

1,927 2,109 

3,292 5,076 
1,007 -

6,226 7,185 
1,679 548 

7,905 7,733 

19 
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Notes to the accounts 

4 Exceptional Items 2002 2001 
protorra 
restied 

Recognised in arriving at operating loss: 
Television licence administration contract losses - (67) 
Recovery of losses arising from the supply 
of services for television licensing 19 - 
impairment write-downs (446) - 
Provision for restructuring of parcel services (298) - 
Pipeline restructuring (156) - 
Other redundancy provisions {228) - 
Vacant leasehold property provisions (10) -

(1:119) (67) 
Recognised below operating loss: 

Impairment of goodwill in associate (7) - 
Net profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (no 
tax or minority interest effect) 24 20 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking (10) -

(1,112) (47) 

Impairment reviews were carried out using a weighted average cost of capital of 8% and by reference to future projections 
in accordance with long-term average growth rates. 

The impairment relates to tangible fixed assets in Post Office Limited and the goodwill and other assets in the parcels businesses 
amounting to £446m. 

Parcel services restructuring relates to the decision that Parcelforce Worldwide should concentrate solely on the growing market 
for 'lime-guaranteed' and 'next day' and 'two day' express deliveries, both In the UK and overseas. Consignia will transfer its universal 
parcels service to Royal Mail who will use its existing network. 

The provision for the pipeline restructuring relates to the initiative to streamline the transport network. A more integrated road-based 
regional hub and spoke system will reduce the total number of road journeys. 

Other redundancy provisions relate to improvements in efficiency throughout Consignia to support the initiative to reduce gross costs 
by £1.4bn per annum by April 2005. 

5 Net Interest receivable 2002 2001 
orator. a 

cm Lw 
Interest payable: 

--On bank loans and overdrafts (4) (6) 
- On other loans (30) (4) 

(34) (10) 
Interest receivable 90 116 

56 106 

In addition, counter services (Post Office Limited) net interest receivable of Cl m (2001 £11m) is included within other 
operating charges. 

20 , wv;r.:.. 2„012002 
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6 Taxation 

The 2001 figures have been restated to show the affect of the Implementation of FRS 19 - Deferred tax, 

(a) Tax on (Ions)/profit on ordinary activities 
The tax charge/(credit) is made up as follows: 

Current tax 
UK corporation tax on income for the period 
Tax overprovided in previous years 

Foreign tax 

Group current tax 
Share of associates' Current tax 

Total current tax (note 6 (b)) 

Group deterred tax -origination and reversal 
of timing differences (note 6 (d)) 

Tax on (toss)/profit on ordinary activities 

2002 2001 
eroxxR'1 

vs !etaWd 

- 1 
- (13) 

- (12) 

2 1 

2 (11) 
1 t 

3 (10) 

(182) 44 

(179) 34 

(b) Factors affecting current tax chargel(credlt) 
The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2001 30%). The differences are 
explained below: 

2002 2001 
proorro 
s reslaieu 

4m 

(Loss)lprolit on ordinary activities before tax (1,124) 81 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard 
rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2001 30%) (337) 24 
Deferredf(accelerated) relief for asset depreciation and impairment 112 (6) 
Accelerated relief for pension Contributions (31) (43) 
Provisions not deductible until incurred 101 5 
Impairment and amortisation of goodwill 85 1 
Deferred tax, including losses, not recognised 57 (1) 
Other tax assets, Including losses 16 10 

Total current tax (note 6 (a)) 3 (10) 

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges 
The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of £57m (2001 £18m) relating to tax losses in subsidiaries that are available 
to offset against future taxable profits of those companies. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses 
as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and have arisen In companies which have been loss-making 
for some lime. 

The Group has capital losses carried forward, the tax effect of which is approximately £11 m (2001 £11 m). These may be set-off in 
future against capital gains. The Group has rolled over capital gains, the tax effect of which totals £67m (2001 £60m). it is expected 
that gains on assets sold in the year will be fully rolled over into assets acquired in the same year or the next three years. 

Post Office Limited has £f 26m of deferred tax assets relating to timing differences which have not been recognised due to the 
uncertain outlook for trading, making future taxable profits uncertain. This deferred tax asset may be recognised In future if, and 
to the extent that, suitable taxable profits become available. 

Aootrisia 28811'30? 21 
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Notes to the accounts 

6 Taxation (continued) 

(d) Deterred tax 
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows: 

2002 2001 
erolorma 

an restrtep 
£m £m 

Included in provision for liabilities and charges (note 18) (58) (240) 

Accelerated capital allowances (9) (121) 
Pension contributions timing differences (158) (127) 
Provisions 109 8 

(58) (240) 

At 26 March 2001 proforma as restated 
Deferred tax credit in Group profit and loss account (note 6 (a)) 

At 31 March 2002 

(240) 
182 

(58) 

7 Transfer to dividend reserve 2002 2001 
proierma 

tar 

Transfer to dividend reserve 93

In its White Paper (Cmd 4340), HM Government indicated that it would seek a dividend in respect of the trading results of The Post 
Office Group in 2000 and 2001. Under the terms of the British Telecommunications Act 1981, The Post Office Corporation was unable 
to declare and pay a dividend. However, the Board Members of the Corporation designated £244m of reserves in respect of a 
prospective request for payment of dividends. The Secretary of State for Trade and Industry announced on 25 March 2002 that the 
Shareholder would forego the dividend for this financial year. 

8 Intangible fixed assets oche, 

600dv.Ai assts 
£m Em 

COST 
At 26 March 2001 proforma 441 17 
Additions in the year (note 10(11)) 24 - 
Disposals In the year (5) - 
Adjustments in respect of prior year's acquisitions (note 1O)) (13) -
Exchange movement (5) - 

At 31 March 2002 442 17 

AMORTISATION 
At 26 March 2001 proforma 37 
Charge for the year 22 
Impairment 259 
Disposals in the year (5) 
Exchange movement (1) 

At 31 March 2002 312 

NET BOOK AMOUNT 
At 31 March 2002 130 

At 26 March 2001 proforma 404

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is being amortised evenly over its estimated useful economic life of 20 years. 

22 1 4 ts _ , . . ,. 

War 
Stn 

458 
24 
(5) 

(13) 
(5) 

rte: 

37 
23 

259 
(5) 

- (1) 

1 313 

16 146 

17 421 
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9 Tangible fixed assets 

Group Lind and bu,5ngs P,y t and Mae roxur®s and 
frsneers Lang lease Shod lease mecltlner/ selmise agwp,nsei TOW 

Se, £m Cm £m £m Cn £m 

COST 
At 28 March 2001 proforma 1,765 244 481 810 464 932 4,486 
Prior period adjustment (note 9 (ii)) (266) (21) (102) (21) (31) (9) (449) 

As restated 1,490 223 379 589 433 923 4,037 
Reclassification 8 1 (9) - - - -
Additions 111 - - 40 32 45 228 
On acquisition of subsidiaries - 2 - - - - 2 
Disposals (20) (1) (4) (5) (123) (106) (259) 

At 31 March 2002 1,589 225 366 624 342 862 4,008 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
At 26 March 2001 proforma 436 54 188 241 260 760 1,939 
Prior period adjustment (vole 9 (ii)) 168 21 (81) (22) (25) (9) 72 

As restated 604 75 127 219 235 751 2,011 
Charge for the year 49 5 24 45 81 64 248 
Impairment 5 35 26 46 - 75 187 
Disposals (10} (1) (3) (4) (99) (104) (221) 

At 31 March 2002 848 114 174 306 197 788 2,225 

NET BOOK AMOUNT 
At 31 March 2002 941 111 192 318 145 76 1,783 

At 26 March 2001 preforms as restated 886 148 252 370 198 172 2,026 

() The net book amounts held under hire purchase contracts amount to £118m (2001 a restated £185m). 

(i( The prior period adjustment relates to the change of accounting policy from modified historic cost to the historic cost 
accounting convertion. 

10 Fixed asset investments 

Group x326 March 550,0 Si 
20et asrauafes' At31 March 

profotma AsetiMFS 6ispsslsned sv, short I55a5mera 8'Q'it 2062 
Cm £fi Es Em £m £m £m 

Share of net assets 
in associates 5 3 - 21 - 4 33 
Goodwill 22 37 - - (12) - 47 

Net investment 
In associates 27 40 - 21 (12) 4 80 
Financial investments 15 2 (3) - - - 14 
Other investments 18 4 (1) (21) - - -

60 46 (4) - (12) 4 94 

Financial investments are Local Authority deposits which have a maturity date in excess of 12 months at the date of purchase. 

Further details of principal associates are given in note 27. 

During the year, the Group entered into a transaction with TNT Post Group (TPG) and Singapore Post whereby each party contributed 
assets and/or bought shares to form an international cross-border malt distribution company, 00 Worldwide Mal N.V. (trading as 
'Spring'). The Group contributed the business of its European branches, the shares and business of a subsidiary and purchased 
further shares for £21 m, This transaction resulted in an unrealised gain of £15m caused by the excess of the fair value of the part 
of the business given up as consideration over the previous book value. 

In 2001, the Group acquired a 20% stake In Camelot, the UK National Lottery operator. However, the Group neither exercised 
significant Influence nor shared in the profits of Camelot during the currency of the first lottery licence. Accordingly, the shareholding 
was reported as a fixed asset Investment in the accounts for the year ended 25 March 2001. During the period of the second licence, 
commencing 27 January 2002, the Group will participate fully in the business of Camelot. Since that date. the 20% investment has 
therefore been treated as an associate in these accounts. 

During the year, the Group increased its stake in Direziona Gruppo Executive S.p.A. from 49% to 100%. Accordingly, this has been 
treated as a subsidiary of the Group. 
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Notes to the accounts 

10 Fixed asset investments (continued) 

Company 
2002 2001 

Thai out 
em £m 

At 26 March 2001 - -
Transfer from The Post Office Corporation 3,784 -
Net asset value adjustment (1,059) - 

At 31 March 2002 2,725 -

The net asset value adjustment arises as a result of the accounting policy note 1(i). This states that the value of investments 
in internally formed subsidiary undertakings are stated at net asset value_ 

(i) Acquisitions In the prior year 
The Group acquired a number of letter and parcel delivery businesses in the year ended 25 March 2001 for which completion 
accounts had not been finalised. The consideration and net assets acquired were included at their provisional fair values, which 
equated to their estimated book values. Adjustments have been made to the consideration based on the final completion accounts 
and the book values of the net assets acquired as shown In the table below. No further fair value adjustments have been made, 

p,o rs'onal 
lair vale ro Per vaIne to 
iiai G'erp A4jusl nenlo Liv Group 

£m Cm Cm 
Tangible fixed assets 30 (a) 22 
Current assets 
Debtors 49 (3) 46 

Total assets 79 (11) 66 

Liabilities 
Bank overdraft (2) - (2) 
Trade creditors (56) 7 (49) 
Other creditors and accruals (20) 16 (4) 

Net aaaela acquired 1 12 13 

Goodwill arising on acquisition 174 (13) 161 

175 (1) 174 

Discharged by: 
Fair value of consideration 172 (1) 171 

Costs of acquisition 3 - 3 

175 (1) 174 

(11) Acquisitions during the year 

The principal entities acquired were: 
Date of acquistion 

Direzione Gruppo Executive 3.pA. (formerly an associate) 13 December 2001 
Financial Distribution Services Ltd 1 August 2001 
City & Financial International Ltd (CFI) 17 November 2001 
Stafetten Kolding NS I June 2001 

Further details of principal subsidiary undertakings can be found in note 27. 

The acquisition method of accounting has been used. No acquisitions are material to the Group and the following disclosures have 
been made on an aggregated basis. 
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10 Fixed asset Investments (continued) 

The following table sets out the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at their provisional lair value to the Group. 
fm 

Tangible fixed assets 2 
Current assets 
Debtors 1 

Total assets 3 

Liabilities 
Trade creditors (2) 

Net assets acquired 1 

Goodwill arising on acquisition 24 

25 

Discharged by: 
Fair value 01 consideration 24 
Costs of acquisition 1 

25 

The provisional fair value to the Group of the acquisitions was consistent with their book values. 

The acquisitions were made by share and asset purchases for a cash consideration, subject to adjustment on agreement of 
completion accounts. 

No material adjustments were required in respect of accounting policy alignment. The completion accounts may result in adjustments. 

(fit) Disposals during the year 
On 30 November 2001, the Group disposed of its 67% interest in CityMail Sweden. The Group's share of the net assets of CityMail 
Sweden at the date of disposal were £13m. 

11 Debtors 2002 2001 
~NULI'Y~ 

£m ~m 

Receivable beyond one year: 
Pension prepayment 531 365 
Other debtors 18 10 

549 375 

2002 2001 

[m fm 

Receivable within one year: 
Trade debtors 700 789 
Prepayments and accrued income 182 218 
Corporation tax recoverable - 15 

882 1,022 

The pension prepayment relates to the cumulative excess of the amounts funded in the Group's defined benefit schemes over the 
amounts charged to the consolidated profit and loss account 

25 
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Notes to the accounts 

12 Current asset investments 2002 2001 

tm 
Government gilt-edged securities 358 197 
Government short-term deposits (National Loans Fund) 1,172 1,563 
UK Government Treasury bills - 272 

Local Authority deposits 270 111 

1,8110 2,14 3 

In accordance with accounting policy note (iii), current asset investments are stated at market value. The difference between cost 
and market value taken to the profit and loss account for these investments was £9m (2001 £nil). 

The Government has Indicated that it would expect the investments represented by cash surpluses arising from previous years' 
trading to be ring-fenced for specific purposes: to act as security for borrowing from the National Loans Fund to finance the mails 
business, and to support expenditure by Post Office Limited (POL) where such expenditure has the approval of the Secretary of State 
and the Treasury. 

13 Creditors - amounts fatting due within one year 2002 2001 

C 
profor -x 

Loans (note 15) 9 19 
Obligations under hire purchase agreements (note 16) 36 83 
Counter services client services balances 987 991 
Trade creditors 596 826 
Advance customer payments for mail services 220 214 
Deferred consideration (note 17) 6 11 
Corporation tax 1 - 
Other taxation and social security 104 10.5 
Other creditors 7 4 
Accruals and deferred income 374 434 

2,340 2,487 

The Group receives and disburses cash on behalf of Government agencies to customers (client services balances) through its 
counters network. The level of such funds held can vary significantly at each balance sheet date. 

14 Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 2002 2001 
prIXcr. a 

Cm Ce 
Loans (note 15) 581 581 
Obligations under hire purchase agreements (note 16) 70 106 
Deferred consideration (note 17) 3 5 
Other I 5 

655 697 

15 Loans 2002 2001 
ruoConra 

Cm 
Amounts failing due in: 
One year or less 9 19 
More than one year but not more than two years 3 17 
More than two years but not more than five years 74 59 
More than five years 504 505 

590 600 

Analysis of loans 
rate 

secalry secipal
rrn 

National Loans Fund: 
Loans repayable between March 2021 
and September 2025 None 500 5.28 to 6.12 

Floating rate bank loans None 70 025 above LIBOR 
Miscellaneous long-term bank loans taken out 
by overseas subsidiaries Land and buildings 20 Various fixed rates 

590 
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16 Obligations under hire purchase agreements 

17 Deterred consideration 

Amounts tailing due in: 
One year or less 
More than one year but not more than two years 
More than two years but not more than live years 
More than live years 

Amounts tailing due in: 
One year or less 
More than one year but not more than two years 

2002 

fm 

36 
34 
35 

106 

2002 

£m 

6 
3 

9 

83 
35 
71 

189 

2001 

El 
prc`~rma 

Purchase consideration includes an estimate of Loul (2001 £6m) which is contingent upon the future performance of the acquired 
entities. The deferred consideration is payable in instalments. 

18 Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Surplus properties 
Television licence administration contract 
Pipeline restructuring 
Restructuring of parcel services 
Other redundancy 
Other 
Deterred tax (note 6) 

11 
5 

16 

At 
26 truer utter 'barged Paleased Ut?Need At 

As Pt ot period fltotCPnsa :n the in tote in the 3t March 
%emend a diSirrnt : s estetted YEar yen Yee, 2002 

£m :n, fm £m £m Err Cr0 

11 - 11 10 - - 21 
22 - 22 -- (i) (21) -

- - 156 -- - 156 
- - - 298 - (1) 297 
2 - 2 228 - (24) 206 
5 - 5 7 - - 12 
10 230 240 - (182) - 58 

50 230 280 699 (183) (48) 750 

The prior period adjustment reflects the impact of the implementation of FRS 19 - Deferred tax, during the financial year and the 
deferred tax effect of the change in accounting policy from modified historic cost to the historic cost accounting convention. 

(1) Surplus properties 
Where the Group holds surplus leasehold properties, provision is made for future rentals and other unavoidable property costs 
up to the earlier of the lease termination date and the Directors best estimate of the likely date of disposal. £3m of the provision 
is expected to be utilised in 2002-03 and the majority of the balance over the following six years. 

(ii) Television licence administration contract 
Provisions were made in 2001 to reflect foreseeable losses arising on a new contract between the BBC and Consignia (Customer 
Management) Limited plus costs resulting from the terminated contract with Envision Licensing Limited. 

till) Pipeline restructuring 
The provision comprises redundancy and other operating charges. £42m is expected to be utflised in 2002-03 and the majority 
of the balance in 2003-04. 

(iv) Restructuring of parcel services 
The provision comprises redundancy costs and other operating charges. £198m is expected to be utilised in 2002-03 and 
the majority of the balance in 2003-04. 

(v) Other redundancy 
il ls expected that £163m will be incurred in 2002-03 and the remainder in the following two years. 

(vi) Other provisions 
Other provisions relate to reimbursements to nominee subpostmasters, legal claims against the Group and the costs anticipated 
on the closure of a subsidiary It is expected that the costs will be Incurred In 2002-03. 
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19 Rceerves 

Group 

At 26 March 2001 proforma: 
- As reported 
- Prior period adjustments (accounting policy 

note B): 
Historic cost accounting convention 
Deferred tax 

- As restated 
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 
Unrealised gain on associate transaction (note 10) 
Exchange difference on retranslation of net 
assets of subsidiaries 
Exchange difference on loans 

At 31 March 2002 

2002 2001 
Prof#t rLbr.,-.a 

anti loss a5 rgplA/,C] 
account Revaluation Dividand Qthet Total k, iot 

em £nl £m £m £m ,in 

3,666 384 244 — 4,294 4,099 

(137) (384) — — (521) (434) 

(230) - - - (230) (181) 

3,299 - 244 - 3,543 3,484 
(940) - - (940) 49 

15 15 - 

(15) - - - (15) 13 
2 - - - 2 (3) 

2,346 - 244 15 2,605 3,543 

The profitf(loss) impact of changes In accounting policies on the current and prior year results is summarised below: 

2002 2001 

£m 
Deferred tax 62 

Cr 

(49) 
Historic cost accounting convention 27 

......._ ...................................-_...—.....—...._ _ --... ..—.-- _... ... 32 
— —..~....._._....—.. 

Profiitl(loss) impact on reported results 8g (17) 

Company 
2002 2001 

Profit 
atM to. 

Revaluation 50wont 055115155 TM111 Total 
£m £m £rn E. £m 

At 26 March 2001 - - - -
As reported in the Corporation's 2001 accounts 297 3.907 244 4,448 - 
Impact of prior period adjustments In Consignia plot 

Historic cost accounting convention (297) (137) - (434) -
Deferred fax (230) - (230) - 

Transfer from The Post Office Corporation 3,640 244 3,784 -
Loss for the financial year - (1,059) - (1,059) -

At 31 March 2002 - 2,481 244 2,725 - 

The Company is a non-trading company and the loss for the financial year represents the net asset value adjustment arising as a 
result of accounting policy note 1(1). This states that the Investments in internally formed subsidiary undertakings are stated at net 
asset value. Accordingly, the Company's loss for the financial year is eliminated in the Group accounts and does not therefore form 
part of the Group results. 
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20 Derivatives and other financial instruments 

An explanation of the Group's treasury policy and controls is included in the financial review on page 3. The role of financial 
instruments in creating or changing the risks the Group faces in its activities is also explained in this section. 

As permitted by FRS 13, short-term debtors, trade creditors, prepayments and accruals have been excluded from the disclosures. 

(i) Financial liabilities - interest rate profile 

The currency profile of the financial liabilities of the Group was as follows: 
2002 2001 

Fixed Floating Non-intonnst Flxod Floot,ag NC, ktoost p,diorma 
rate rate bearing 
£m F. £m 

Total 
Ern 

We 
fm 

rate 
fm 

hearing 
Em 

Total 
ern 

Euro 20 70 4 94 40 71 - 111 
Starting 500 - 1,096 1,596 500 - 1,188 1,688 
US Dollar 2 - - 2 - 5 5 

Total 522 70 1,100 1,692 540 71 1,193 1,804 

The interest rate and maturity profiles of the financial liabilities were as follows: 
2002 

Fixed rate Fioatkng rata Non-intera.t bearing 
Average Average Average 
omens ttnar to 1555 10 

Value letereyt fate matr rlty Value interest raft materrty Vetue maturity 
Sal 1 Years £a, % Year. X. Days 

Euro 20 5.74 8.14 70 Euro 2.00 4 183 
LIBOR 
+ 0.25 

Sterling 

US Dollar 

Total 

Euro 

Sterling 

US Dollar 

Total 

500 5.84 21.25 

2 4.00 1.00 

522 

Fead 'ate 
Average 
Lire to 

Value lrrterrst me rniLl 9v
£m 10 

29 Various 9.10 
fixed rates years 

11 5.00 182 days 

500 5.84 2225 
years 

540 

(ii) Financial assets - interest rate profile 

The currency profile of the financial assets of the Group was: 

987 On 
demand 

106 726 
3 183 

70 1,100

2001 
praornra 

Floa[r;V rate NDn•?nteteia bearing 
Average Average 
Gmelo time to 

Value Interest rate maturity Value maturity 
£r, V. doom kin Days 

71 Euro 3.00 - -
LIBOR 
+ 0.25 

999 On 
demand 

189 1,091 
5 732 

71 1,193 

2002 2001 
Flood Floating Non-interest Fixed Floating Nor'merest proo,ala 

rate rate bearing Total rat¢ rate leering Total 
£m Z. in, C. Cm £m Zr,, Z. 

Euro 1 19 8 23 - 1 - 1 
Sterling 1,814 3 1,016 2,833 2,178 2 902 3,082 
Swedish Kroner - - - - - - 1 1 
US Dollar 4 - 2 6 - 2 1 3 
Other - - 1 1 - - - - 

Total 1,819 22 1,027 2,868 2,178 5 904 3,087 
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Notes to the accounts 

20 Derivatives and other financial Instruments (continued) 

The interest rate and maturity profile at the financial assets were as loltows: 

Flied rate 
Weighted Average 

average time 10 
Value interest rate maturity 

£m Oays 

Euro 1 3.08 8 

Sterling 1,791 4.02 143 
10 5.06 60 
13 8.33 382 

US Dollar 4 0.50 On 
demand 

Other - - - 

Total 1,819 

2002 
Floating rate Noe•irrereat bearing 

Avarage Average 
interest time to time to 

Value rate maturity Value maturity 
For .. Days £m Days 

19 Euro On 8 On 
overnight demand demand 

3 Bank On 1,016 On 
base demand demand 

minus 1 

- - 2 On 
demand 

- - - 1 On 
demand 

22 1,027 

2001 
nrtrtnrma 

Fixed rate fuat:ny rate r1on4ntere0t bearing 
V!e tied dreary AJeaage Average 

average time to mimes, tlrt18 to tune to 
Value interest raw na-tunty Valus rate maturity Vatae maturity 

Cr, or flays Cm `:4 Goys Cm Days 

Euro - - I Euro On - -
overnight demand 

Sterling 2,178 5.90 196 2 Bank On 902 On 
base demand demand 

minus 1 

Swedish Kronor - - - - -. - I On 
demand 

US Dollar - - - 2 0.5 On 1 On 
demand demand 

Total 2,178 5 904 

The Sterling assets of the Group comprise of gilts, deposits and cash. 

A one percentage point increase in interest rates throughout the period would increase profit before tax by £9m. 

(111) Maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities 

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 March 2002 is set out below: 
2002 2001 

Pioterma 
fm Cry 

One year or less or on demand 1,036 1,104 
More than one year but not more than two years 38 58 
More than two years but not more than five years 111 137 
More than five years 507 505 

1,692 1,804 
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20 Derivatives and other financial Instruments (continued) 

(Iv) Fair value of financial assets/(Ilablllties) 
2002 2001 

rrofo—
Book value Fvir extra ketk eater rae Y2rre 

Em Em £m Em 
Primary financial instruments held or issued 
to finance the Group's operations 
cash 1,054 1,054 $91 891 
Current asset investments 1,800 1,800 2,163 2,163 
Fixed asset investments 14 14 29 29 
investments - CityMail - - 4 1 
Long-term borrowings (590) (590) (600) (600) 
Deferred consideration (9) (9) (16) (16) 
Hire purchase creditor (106) (106) (189) (189) 
Client services balances (987) (987) (991) (991) 
Other - - (8) (8) 

Derivative financial instruments held to manage currency exposure 
At the balance sheet date, the Group held contracts to purchase foreign currency for £188m (2001 £144m), There was no difference 
between the contracted rate and the actual rate at that date. 

The carrying value of gilts is £358m (2001 £197m) which is included in the current asset investment figures. The Group portfolio 
of gilt holdings showed a loss of £9m (2001 £nil) during the financial year when revalued. 

(v) Gains and losses on transactional exposures 

The table below shows the Group's currency transactional exposures that give rise to net currency gains and losses recognised In 
the profit and loss account. These liabilities arise from the net payments due to overseas postal administrations for delivery of mail, 
and are denominated in Special Drawing Rights (SDKs). This is a basket currency comprising US Dollar, auro, Japanese Yen and 
Sterling. Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Group that are riot denominated in the functional currency of the 
operating unit involved. 

A maximum of 80% of the exposure to pay overseas administrations is hedged using SDRs, leaving 32 million SDRs unhedged 
this year. 

2002 2001 
p,aforma 

Net foreign currency liabilities (SDRm) 32 26 
Sterling equivalent value (£m) 28 22 

At 31 March 2002, the Group also held various open forward contracts that were taken out to hedge expected future foreign 
currency payments (as shown in note (iv) above). 

(vi) Gains and losses on hedges 

Foreign exchange exposures are hedged using currency deposits, currency borrowings, forward currency contracts and currency 
options. 

Gains and losses on these instruments are not recognised until the hedged exposure itself is recognised. Unrecognised gains and 
losses on these instruments used for hedging are not material. 

(vii) Borrowing facilities 

In view of the large levels of cash and cash equivalents, the Group has no committed borrowing facilities, 

21 Pensions 

The Group operates pension schemes as detailed below: 

Nome 

The Consignia Pension Plan (CPP) 
The Consignia Senior Executive 
Pension Plan (CSEPP) 
The Consignla Retirement 
Savings Plan (CRSP) 

Various other small-state schemes 
operated by overseas subsidiaries 

So/mar name 

The Post Office Pension Plan (POPP) 
The Post Office Senior Executive Pension 
Scheme (POSEPS) 
The Post Office Retirement 
Savings Plan (PORSP) 

Ekgibinry Type 

UK employees Defined benefit 

UK senior executives Defined benefit 
and Directors 
UK employees Defined contribution 

Emptoyoes of the Defined contribution 
overseas subsidiaries 
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21 Pensions (continued) 

GPP consists of two sections, Section A&B and Section C that were created by the merger of two former schemes with effect from 
1 April 2000. The terms of the merger require separate consideration of the financial position of each section for up to six years after 
the date of the merger. The main requirement is that a funding surplus in one section cannot be used to offset a funding deficiency 
In the other. Thus, funding might still be needed for Section C even if Section A&B was experiencing a contribution holiday. 

The pension charge was £276m for the defined benefit schemes, which includes £200m In respect of redundancy provisions, and 
Elm for defined contribution schemes (2001 £64m, £nil and Lien respectively). The overall Group result includes a £250rn (2001 
£228m) benefit derived in accordance with SSAP 24 on the basis set out below. The accounting charges are based on assumptions 
on a'best estimate' basis, which reflects the difference between `experienced' performance over the prudent actuarial assumption 
assumed in the funding rate. This has resulted in a lower regular accounting cost amounting to £53m (2001 £43m) of the benefit. 
The surplus in the Consignia Pension Plan allows a further reduction in cost - evaluated by the Scheme actuary using their 'best 
estimate' assumptions - providing £164m benefit (2001 £165w). This surplus is being amortised over 12 years, the average 
remaining service lives of employees. The interest on the long term pension debtor of £33m (2001 £20m) makes up the final element 
of the benefit. 

Valuations of the defined benefit schemes are carried out at intervals not normally exceeding three years as determined by the 
trustees, The latest actuarial assessments of CPP and CSEPP were carried out as at 31 March 2000 and 1 April 2001 respectively. 
These were performed using an assumed rate of inflation of 3% for both schemes. Investment returns real were assumed to be 
4.75% and 4.25% respectively. Pay increases real were assumed to be 1.5% and 3% respectively and pensions, both in payment 
and deferred, were assumed to Increase at 3% for both schemes. The market value of assets at the latest actuarial assessments was 
015,383w for CPP Section A&B (as at 31 March 2000), £2,434m for CPP Section C (as at 31 March 2000) and £80m for CSEPP (as 
at 1 April 2001). The asset cover of the benefits accrued to members after allowing for future increases in earnings was 115% for CPP 
Section A&B (as at 31 March 2(00), 109% for CPP Section C (as at 31 March 2000) and 77% for CSEPP (as at 1 April 2001) 

CSEPP commenced on i April 2001. 

These accounts comply with the current accounting standard SSAP 24. A new accounting standard, FRS 17 has peen adopted by 
the Group, Disclosures will be phased-in over the three years ending March 2002, March 2003 and March 2004 as permitted by the 
transitional rules. 

FRS 17 disclosures 
The net assets/(liabilities) of the schemes were calculated using an assumed rate of inflation of 2.5%. Pensions, both in payment and 
deferred, are assumed to increase at this rate, with pay increases some 1.3% higher. The discount rate used is 3.5% before inflation_ 
The, results are set out below. 

Net pension assets/(Ilabilltes) and expected rates of return 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Other assets 

Total market value of assets 
Present value of scheme liabilities 

Surplus/(deficit) in scheme 
Surplus restriction 

Pension asset/(liab)fity) before deferred tax 
Related deferred tax (liability)/asset 

Net pension asset/(liabdity) 

one as€.d u 

As at 31 hlarch 2002 At:. at 3 [ P'a.th 7q2 
LO,,,46rm Ls:94.

.,e G! ,rri'i rate e`.'St.,n 
ecrs:xen ccoectn. 

L' a £m 
8.2 12,607 8.2 63 
5.3 1,706 5.3 7 
8.7 1,194 - -
4.5 108 4.5 7 

15,613 77 
(15,331) (87) 

282 (10) 

282 (f0) 
(85) 3 

197 (7) 

The present value of the scheme liabilities does not include the additional liabilities arising from the redundancy programmes. 
An amount of £200m has been provided in the accounts during the year for pension costs for these liabilities (see note 2). 
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21 Pensions (continued) 

22 Commitments 

Reconciliations of net assets and reserves under FRS 17 

Net assets 

Net assets as stated in balance sheet 
SSAP 24 balance 
Related deferred tax 

Net assets excluding pension assetlliability 
FRS 17 pension asset 
FRS 17 pension liability 

Net assets including pension asset/liability 

Reserves 

Profit and lass reserve as stated In balance sheet 
SSAP 24 balance 
Related deferred tax 

Profit and loss reserve excluding amounts relating to pension asset/liability 
FRS 17 pension asset 
FRS 17 pension liability 

Profit and loss reserve including amounts relating to pension asset/liability 

The long-term rates of future contributions expressed as a percentage of pay are 12.1% for GPP Section A&B, 11.1% for 
GPP Section C and 24.9% for GSEPP 

(f) Capital commitments 
Capital commitments contracted for but not provided in the accounts amount to £45m (2001 £205m). 

(it) Operating lease commitments 
The Group is committed to the following payments on operating leases during the next twelve months: 

For leases which expire: 
Within one year 
Between one and five years 
Beyond five years 

23 Contingent liabilities and guarantees 

24 Borrowing limit 

2002 

2,605 
(531) 
158 

2,232 
197 

(7) 

2,422

2002 
erc' 

2,346 
(531) 
158 

1,973 
197 

(7) 

2,163 

land and build rigs te,,drs and 9gnrpenmnt 
2m, 2951 

2002 p;ofor!ne suns prorur-m 
£m 7r, em _m 

7 6 7 -
21 15 62 48 
90 74 - -

118 95  69 48 

A subsidiary has guaranteed the performance of a third party in relation to lease payments payable over the 15-year term of a lease 
entered into on 21 December 2000, and has given certain tax indemnities to the US lessors, In the opinion of the Directors, no loss 

will result to the Group as a result of these guarantees. 

As required by the Notes Sorting Facility rules, notes in transit to cash handling centres and those processed overnight, for which 
Consignia has received credit, are secured by gilts deposited with the Bank of England. On default, the estimated maximum liability 
would be £179m. 

At 31 March 2002, the Group borrowing limit under Section 115(6)(b) of the Postal Services Act 2000 was £5,000m (2001 £5,000m), 
subject to Government agreement. The amount of outstanding borrowings at that date was £705m (2001 £805m). 
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Notes to the accounts 

25 Related party transactions 

During the year the Group entered Into transactions with other related parties. The transactions were in the ordinary course 
of business and included administration and investment services recharged to the Group's pension scheme by Consignia Pensions 
Trustees Limited. The transactions entered into and the balances outstanding at 31 March 2002 are as follows: 

drc,o~nFs 

rdteted Perty Mnpunte 
Setem tO Purtdaree `n3m (:0Cluding Owed to 
:elatac mhmtt eutmtnndrmy related 

pare Pauly IrpLrr j party 
Or: f.: Cm Or 

Consignia Pension Plan 
2002 44.4 - 19.7 -
2001 29.0 - 6.0 

Quadrant Catering Limited 
2002 - 42.0 - 1.0 
2001 - 41.0 - 1.0 

Gashtec Limited 
2002 - -- 2.1 -
2001 - - 0.7 - 

Bull information Systems Limited 
2002 - - - 
2001 2.0 14.0 2.0 4.0 

Postal Preference Services Limited 
2002 1.8 - 0.4 -
2001 0.9 - 0.3 -

Optecon 
2002 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.2 
2001 - - - - 

Camelot plc 
2002 3.8 - -
2001 - - - -

Szybka Paozka Spolka zoo. 
2002 - - 4.6 -
2001 - - - -

G3 Worldwide Mail N.V. 
2002 11.0 17.0 15.0 -
2001 - - - 

Companies listed above are associates of the Group with the exception of Bull Information Systems Limited, which was a co-
shareholder of Envision Licensing Limited until 2001, and the Consignia Pension Plan, 

Jerry Cope, a Director, is a shareholder-nominated Director of Camelot pie, with whom the Group has a commercial relationship for 
the sale of Let Om (2001 £805m) of lottery products per annum. Camelot became an associate of the Group on 27 January 2002, 

26 Post balance sheet events 

The Consignia Group announced its intention to restructure its letter delivery service. The Tailored Delivery Services programme will 
introduce new delivery schedules, which will extend current delivery timeframes, whilst offering value-added delivery services. 
The structure and new services are scheduled for a phased implementation over the next three years at art estimated redundancy 
cost of approximately £350m. Long-term gross cost savings are provisionally estimated to be in excess of £350m per annum. 

On 29 May 2002, Postcomm announced their decisions on the introduction of competition into the UK postal market. The three-
phased approach adopted by Postcomm comprises: 

From 1 January 2003 - the liberalisation of bulk mail posted in volumes above 4,000 items (from a single site and in identical size 
format) will take place. This is expected to open up 30% of the domestic mail market, as measured by revenue, to competition. 
In addition, other operators will be able to consolidate and convey mail for Consignia to undertake final delivery. Postcomm will 
continue to license niche services. 

From 1 April 2005 - the bulk mail threshold will be reduced to open up 60% of the market, by revenue, to competition. 

From 1 April 2007 - the whole of the UK postal market wilt be liberalised and open to competition. 

Consignia estimates that after the full effects of competition have worked through, over the next three to five years, it will lose around 
30% of its current market share in terms of both revenue and traffic volume. 
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27 Principal subsidiary undertakings and associates 

Cou"trvot lnCornwutnr' Pr,cBrltiQehsrr'S'S PrinciPsl 2IX':\'~1!e5 
551isirllary unticrtakings 

Consignia plc' UK 100 Distribution services 
Post Office Limited (formerly Post Office Counters Ltd) UK 100 Counter services 
Conaignia (Customer Management) limited UK 100 Customer management 
Citipost Europe Ltd UK 100 Mail services 
Citipost Corporation USA 100 Mail services 
German Parcels Beteiligungs GmbH Germany 100 Parcel services 
Extend SA France 100 Parcel services 
Petite Trans NS Denmark 100 Parcel services 
Nedertandse Pakket Dienst B.V. Netherlands 100 Parcel services 
Direzione Gruppo Executive S.p.A. Italy 100 Parcel services 

ASS6CW-

Camelot plc UK 20 Lottery operations 
Quadrant Catering Limited' UK 51 Catering services 
G3 Worldwide Mail N.V. (trade name ̀ Spring') Netherlands 24.5 Mail services 

I This investment is held by the Company. All other investments are held by subsidiaries. 

2. The Group holds 51% of the share capital of Quadrant Catering Limited. However, the votirg rights attached to the various 
ceases of shares give the other investor operational control. Quadrant is therefore treated as an associate in the Group 
accounts, 

3. The results for the year ended 31 March 2002 have been consolidated for all subsidiaries except CI post Europe Ltd and 
Citipost Corporation, whose results for their year ended 31 December 2001 have been used, There were no material 
variations from their normal trading activities between 1 January 2002 and 31 March 2002. 

Details of subsidiaries acquired during the year are given in note 10. A full list of subsidiary undertakings and associates is available 
from the Company's registered office, All shareholdings are equity shares. 

28 Share capital Authorised 2002 2001 

Ordinary shares of £1 each 
r 

100,000 
_ 

100,000 
Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share 
(Special Share) of £1 each 1

100,001 100,001 

Allotted and called up 2002 2001 

Ordinary shares of £t each 
G 

50,000 
f 

50,000 
Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share of £1 each 1 1 

50,001 50,001 

The Special Share can be redeemed at any time by its holder (the Special Shareholder). The Company cannot redeem the Special 
Share without the prior consent of the Special Shareholder. No premium is payable on redemption. 

Subject to, and In accordance with, the provisions of the Postal Services Act 2000, the Special Shareholder can at any time require 
the Directors to declare and pay a dividend to the Special Shareholder or its nominee. 

On distribution in a winding up of the Company, the Special Shareholder is entitled to repayment of the capital paid up on the Special 
Share In priority to any repayment of capital to any other member. 

The Special Share does not carry any rights to vote. 

In accordance with s63(7) of the Postal Services Act 2000, which provides that for the purposes of the Companies Act 1985, the 
shares issued to the Secretary of State shall be treated as if their nominal value had been fully paid up. 

29 Loss attributable to the members of the parent company 

The ions dealt with in the accounts of the parent company was £1,059m. The Company is a non-trading company and the loss for the 
financial year represents the net asset value adjustment arising as a result of accounting policy note 1(i). This states that the 
investments in internally formed subsidiary undertakings are stated at net asset value (see note 19). Accordingly, the Company's loss 
for the financial year is eliminated in the Group accounts and does not therefore form part of the Group results. 
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Five-year summary 

57-es 96-99 9940 00.01 01-02 
as restated 

Profit and loss account £m £rn Or' £m E. 

Turnover: all continuing operations 6,759 7,010 7,522 8,119 8,408 
Total operating costs before exceptional items (6,231) (6,616) (7,141) (8,097) (8,475) 
Exceptional Items .._.-_—_~.....~.__..._ {6 (67) (1,119) 

Group operating profit/floss): continuing 528 394 (275) (45) (1,186) 
Share of operating profit of associates - 3 4 - 4 
Impairment of goodwill in associates __ (12 

Total operating profit/floss) 528 397 (271) (45) (1,194) 
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets 4 41 11 20 24 
Profit on disposal of support service - 22 - - - 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking _

Profif/(ioss) before interest 532 460 (260) (25) (1,180) 
Net interest receivable 132 148 89 106 56 

Profitt(loss) before tax 664 608 (171) 81 (1,124) 
Taxation  (217) (112 (34 179 

Profit/floss) after tax 447 496 (287) 47 (945) 
Equity minority interests - - 3 2  5 

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 447 496 (264) 49 (940) 
Transfer to dividend reserve - - 151 J93j 

Prof 1/(1003) retained 447 496 (415) (44) (940) 

Balance sheet sr-es 08-99 9940 to-or 01-02 
as restatga 

Cm £Y,. £n. Cm Cm 

Intangible assets - 220 270 421 146 
Tangible fixed assets 2,327 2,510 2,419 2,026 1,783 
Fixed asset investments 31 22 26 60 94 
Net current assets 1,479 1,708 1,723 2,008 1,987 
Creditors beyond one year and provisions _,. , (63)__ (16L (342) (977) (1,405) 

Total assets less liabilities 3,774  4,300  4,096 3,538 2,605 

Revaluation reserve 259 225 289 - -
Other reserves - - - - 15 

Profit and toss account 3,515 4,075 3,659 3,299 2,346 
Dividend reserve - - 151 244 24-4 
Equity minoriy interests

Capital and reserves 3,774 4,300 4,096 3,538 2,605 

Note 
The restated figures for 2000-01 reflect the impact of the implementation of FRS 19- Deterred tax, and the change to the historic 
cost accounting convention. 
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Glossary of terms 

Accounting convention 
The basis on which accounts are prepared. 

Hedge 
The use of financial assets and financial liabilities to manage 
risk. 

Accounting Standards Board (ASS) 
The Accounting Standards Board is responsbie for producing Historic cost basis 
account ng standards which are t,nown as Fnr.at'ci5t The system of accou ritirtg where all current and capital 
Reporting Standards. The Company is required to comply expenditure is recorded at its cost at the time of purchase. 
with Financial Reporting Standards when preparing accounts. 

Capital expenditure 
Expenditure on new, or additions to existing, fixed assets 

Cash 
Cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand (within 24 
hours or one working day) with any financial institution. 

CBI 
Confederation of British Industry. 

Client services balances 
Balances owed to or due from clients in respect of counter 
transactions carried out by Post Office Limited. 

Counter services 
The services provided to customers by the network of Post 
Ctfice branches. 

Creditors 
The amount owed to others for pay, goods and services. 

Currency options 
An option to buy or self foreign currency 

Current assets 
Cash, or other assets readily convertible into cash. 

Debtors 
Mainly amounts owed by customers for services provided 
and pension prepayment. 

Deferred taxation 
The estimated future tax consequences of transactions and 
events recognised in the financial statements of the current 
and previous periods. 

FRS 
A Financial Reporting Standard issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board. 

Finance lease 
A, lease that transfers substaorially al tire risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset to me lessee. 

Goodwill 
The excess of consideration over net assets acquired. 

Group 
Comprises Conslgnia Holdings plc and its subsidiary 
undertakings. 

Interbusiness balances 
Amounts owing between constituent businesses and 
subsidiary undertakings of the Group. 

ICABW 
The 'netitute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales, 

Liquid funds (cash flow) 
Current asset investments that are Held as readily disposable 
stoics of value. These investments are readily convenlble into 
known amounts of cash at, or close, to their carrying amount 
and can be disposed of without curtailing bus'ness 
operations. 

NLF 
National Loans Fund. 

Operating lease 
A lease other than a trance lease. 

Operating profit 
Represents the profit (before interest and non-operating 
exceptional items) on ordinary activities with the exception 
of counter services where interest Pais lobe treated within 
operating activities. 

POL 
Post Office Limited. 

Provisions 
Amounts set aside to meet known liabilities likely to be 
incurred or certain to be incurred but where the amount is 
uncertain. 

Reserves 
The profit and loss account represents accumulated profits. 

Shareholder 
The Company's shareholder is kite (3overnment. 

Tangible fixed assets 
Bui'.dirvgs, plant and vehicles purchased for use over a 
number of years. 

Total recognised gains and losses 
Total of all gains and losses - realised and unrealised - that 
are recognised in a per'od and are attributable to the 
shareholder. 

Universal Service Obligation IUSO) 
The requirement to provide a universal postal service 
in the 1tK. 
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Contacts 

Consignia 
148 Old Street 
LONDON 
EC1V 9H0 
020 7250 2888 

Royal Mail 
Business Sales Centre 
08457 950950 

Royal Mail 
Customer Services 
08457 740740 

Parcelforce Worldwide 
Customer Services 
0800 224466 

Post Office Helpline 
08457 223344 

Further copies of the annual review 
and accounts: 
Review and accounts distribution 
CS 
5th Floor 
130 Old Street 
LONDON 
EC1 V 9PQ 
020 7320 7313 

Further information is available from 
the Company's websites 
(www.con si g n l a-o n li n e. com 
and www.consignia.com) 
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